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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Ms. Chan Sau Chi

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Charmwut Bernard

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED
ACCOUNTANT
Mr. Tsoi Kin Lung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of America, N.A.

China Construction Bank

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Mallesons Stephen Jaques
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Block M
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Fo Tan

Shatin

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street
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Tricor Investor Services Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre
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Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
BE-ZZLtHF BEZZZERF
+TZA=+—HLEE +TZA=T—HILEE
HKS$ Million & & & 5T HKS$ Million B &% T

Revenue e 10,427 8,472
Profit Attributable to Equity RARERFAA
Holders of the Company TE(E % T 1,813 1,638
Pre-tax Profit Margin P 5 AT 22 B Sk 61 2R 19.7% 22.3%
Equity Attributable to Equity RABERFFE A
Holders of the Company FE(LHER 6,740 4,938
Basic Earnings Per Share (HK$) SREARREF (BT) 0.604 0.573
Current Ratio B = 2.92 2.87
Return on Equity Attributable to RARIERRE ARG
Equity Holders of the Company EE RS 31.1% 34.9%
Net Debt/Total Equity FEEHERRBEL X 22.9% 24.2%
Revenue Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
= of the Company
RARERFE ABEGRT
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT
10,500 2,100
9,000 1,800
7,500 1,500 [~
6,000 1,200
4,500 900
3,000 - 600
1,500 300
() ()
2004 2005 2006 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am delighted to share with
our shareholders that Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) achieved both
record revenue and net profit for the financial year ended 31
December 2007. Our excellent achievement was made possible
by careful phase by phase planning of our organic expansion and
meticulous execution by the dedicated management team. In
light of the Group’s strong underlying performance and subject
to shareholders’ approval, the Board proposes a final dividend of
HK20 cents per share to reward our shareholders. Together with
the interim dividend of HK10 cents per share paid in September
2007, this will constitute a total dividend of HK30 cents per share
for the full year or dividend payout ratio of 50% which is higher
than our target of not less than 30% dividend payout ratio.

RO

AAERREFE  MARSLIBIRER - 2ERE
BARZEIRARAR([ AR ) REHE AR (EE])
REBEZZZ+FT_A=1+—HILFERN - &%
BEANDBALENS -  SEIRGI S B
B EREREENGIRER  BURE  HABRF
HEREHILE —EE - EREERERRRY
EFERBRERPREF/R B - ACIER
RAXH - HRSEFBAGRRHRBAE - RN
—ETEFNAREZERTAIZTHRE - 2
FREBEEABR=TE - KB FE0% * B
SEREMTZ N LRB0%IRELERS °

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBHE

¢ Revenue posted strong growth of 23% to exceed HK$10.4
billion

e Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
up 11% to a record high of HK$1,813.3 million

e Return on equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company stayed healthy at 31.1%

e Solid financial position with net gearing ratio 23%

o EERFARIER23%  RE—BAZTHEET

o ARAETZFEABRMEFERI1% A
F+NAEB—TFTZa=tE8B LTS

o ANRAESIEAABERSOREERSE
31.1% K2R K F

o WMHMRIERE - FRELER23%

PERFORMANCE

The general economic environment continued its positive
momentum in 2007 in spite of modest inventory adjustment in
the electronics supply chain in the first quarter and late 2007.
The Group has been persistently focusing on capacity expansion
and capability upgrading in the past few years so as to ride
on the business opportunities as they arise. Being the largest
global laminate producer backed by the reliable support of our
successful vertically integrated business model with competitive
cost structure, the Group has captured additional market share
in the global laminate market and achieved higher than industry
average growth year-on-year.

RERB

BEEFTEE_STLFEFERFREBEA
MNEFRHE  ERQERBEE _TTLFERAR
FIEAMERS ) - KEEBE—BEFEZINE
REEBRE - WHEBEA ML N AHERTIEH
# o KREERERSEANEREREERD - BHEX
PDHEEESEERN - N ERBEF IHKAZRE
BB R ERNERERTSRIRSER
MR WEFARSERITE K RSRE

HRE .
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

Consolidated revenue of the Group was up 23% from fiscal year
2006 to HK$10,426.8 million. Earnings before interest and tax
(“EBIT”) increased by 13% to HK$2,223.0 million over previous
year. Volume sales were up around 14% with average monthly
shipment reaching 7.7 million square meters. Revenue growth
outpaced volume growth largely due to the faster sales growth
of glass epoxy laminates which commanded higher selling price
than paper laminates. Average selling price (“ASP”) of laminate
increased over previous year for both paper and glass epoxy
laminates as a result of high raw material costs during the year.

The new glass epoxy laminate plant in Jiangyin, Jiangsu province
commenced production in April 2007 and reached monthly
output of 600,000 sheets by end of 2007. Our glass epoxy
laminate manufacturing facility in Fogang, Guangdong province
also increased its output by 400,000 sheets per month in 2007.
Subsequent to these expansion initiatives, total monthly glass
epoxy laminate production capacity for the Group increased by 1
million sheets against the previous year. This was in line with our
strategy to reinforce our presence in PCB manufacturing hubs in
both southern and eastern China so as to serve our customers
with timely delivery of quality laminate products. To bolster our
level of vertical integration, production capacity of other upstream
materials, such as copper foil, bleached kraft paper and epoxy
resin was also increased during the year.

%@ZﬁAﬂﬁﬁx—E%mﬁ:¥ﬁﬁﬂ+%ﬁ

C R TET R EE R IN23% o RINGRFE K
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WIBEHRIAER 2 FHEBEHIREFEMIES ©
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The new glass epoxy laminate plant in Jiangyin, Jiangsu province reinforces our presence in eastern China.

S TEE LR 2 IR ABB AT REIRE - B REEERILEN TG0 -
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The increase in distribution costs by 15% was in line with the
increased product shipment. Compared to the magnitude of the
revenue growth, administrative expenses increased by only 13%
as a result of better operating leverage. Finance cost amounted
to HK$168.1 million, mainly relating to the interest expenses
incurred on the 5-year term loan facility of HK$2.5 billion drawn
in December 2006 and trust receipt loans drawn to fund our
working capital.

DK ABEEERNES ETHMIEIN15% © 1T
XEETH13% @ WEREEB2ERERQE - R
BEMEAMNE - MBERA/—EBATN\BE—T
BET FERAZZERFTZARDE
—TREETZEFMERZMERAX - UEEE
BESEMRERZEARBEERZASMAX -

Our new epoxy resin plant in Jiangyin, Jiangsu province bolsters our production capacities of upstream materials.

FNTERE TR 2 FIRAEER - & — PIRTT KB LR NER -

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our consolidated financial and liquidity position continued to be
strong. As at 31 December 2007, net current assets and current
ratio of the Group were approximately HK$4,538.7 million (31
December 2006 — HK$3,873.0 million) and 2.92 (31 December
2006 - 2.87), respectively.

mEE & K MR

SEENGE VB RREE SR EBRFERE - 1
—ETHFE+ A=+ B RBEEFENA
N+HRE=FTNEETEBET(ZTEETRFTA
=t—H: =+ N\ELTF=ZE8%FT) "ELE
AR 2(ZTERF+A=+—RH:287)°
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Chairman’s Statement FfE#{ &

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)
The net working capital cycle improved slightly to 121 days as at
31 December 2007 from 124 days as at 31 December 2006 on
the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, decreased to
72 days (31 December 2006 — 81 days)

- Trade receivables including amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, in terms of debtors turnover days, stayed
unchanged at 100 days (31 December 2006 — 100 days)

- Trade and bills payables including amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries, in terms of creditors turnover days,
decreased to 51 days (31 December 2006 — 57 days)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing borrowings
net of cash and cash equivalents to total equity) improved
marginally to 23% (31 December 2006 — 24%) as a result of
our positive operating cash inflow after funding working capital
requirement, payment of interest and tax and capital expenditure
during the reporting year. In 2007, the Group invested HK$1,364
million in new production capacity and made deposits for
properties, plant and equipment of HK$222 million. We also paid
interim dividend of HK$300 million in September 2007 in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2007.

The proportion of bank borrowings between short term and long
term was 20%:80% (31 December 2006: 18%:82%). As of 31
December 2007, the Group had committed bank lines of HK$565
million. Together with cash on hand of HK$1.4 billion, the Group
is in a strong financial position to invest in future earnings growth.
Only 1% of the bank borrowings was denominated in Renminbi
and the rest in Hong Kong or US dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management
policy. Subsequent to the 2007 year end, we have entered
interest rate swap agreements of notional amount of HK$1.5
billion with reputable financial institutions in order to secure lower
interest rates for part of our bank borrowings in the next few
years. There was no material foreign exchange exposure to the
Group during the year under review. The Group’s revenue, mostly
dominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirement of operating
expenses.

mENE R R RERR )
FEEESRENA_TTF+_A=+—HHN
—A-TNHERAREE T LtFE+ _A=+—
BR—EA=1+—8 @30T :

- FRASHEEEL T —R(ZZTXRF
TZRA=+—H: N\+—RH)

- ESEERE(RSERERERRMBAT
2R 5 NHOR) B AR E B8 (=
FEAET-A=+-A: @A)

- BSEMER(ATeERERRMNEAR
ZBSEMER) BBHEREL+ A
(ZZTXRF+=A=+—8: A +tH)

RBEFENBRLELESENR IAFBERFEE
MEAERSE  SEDNBESFEERSRA -
SEZFEERERIIKRRE KA SSEWE W
BEEEEREELR)BANER23% (ZEE
NEFTZA=Z+—H:24%) - EER -TT+F
FET+=EBATHESATAIBERELS - WX
TZRE-ZTFT-EEBTHISEEYE  BERE
B AREER_ZET+FNAREHE_TT+
FH+_A=+—ALFEZHERE=EET -

RHERBEENLII A20%  80% (=TT X
F+-A=+—"H:18% :82%) - R_ZTZT+
F+ZA=+—H SEEERTIREEES
AEANTRESETL  MEFERSTHEST
LEBEBRRHVBEREEREERFRRZ
BFEE - RITEETFE1%9AAREER - Hi
A BETTHETER °

SEHEBERDNFENMBER  R-FTLFF
R RERARNEEZSRBBRITEER
THREBTZNRIEHEL - FEARBRKEFE
MIRITERZEARELSE - REFALEAHEKR
FUSNERER - KREIRMBATELNET - AR KX
TAEE - BB ERERLHIABURR -
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a workforce of over
8,600 (81 December 2006: 7,200). The increase in headcount
was in line with our ongoing expansion blueprint. In addition
to offering competitive salary package, the Group grants
discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based on our overall
financial achievement and their individual performance.

ﬂ uil ﬂzﬂtﬂl'ﬁ u m,rm

) —

ABDER

REZZEZ+F+ZA=1+—B SEAH#EHRET
BiB8,600A(ZEEAF+A=+—H : 7,200
AN BIABENDNARAEBREBERZ S
%o EERTREARF IOFTIEFBZIN - ITE
BIEA R MBIV BEOUARFIER 8 TR - K
FR|EES FAEKET -

‘_Ilfﬁ_‘ll l\u

The new glass yarn plant in Qingyuan, Guangdong province further enhances our vertical integration

development.

UREREBELNEBOR  E—PRASEZ EEERER -

PROSPECTS

With an excellent growth track record, we are confident that the
competitive advantages gained in the past will enable the Group
to seize new opportunities and continue to invest for sustainable
growth. Although the recent slow down in the US economy
has posted a challenge to the entire manufacturing sector,
we believe, in light of our financial strength and solid business
fundamentals, the Group will continue to create shareholders
value and, similar to other downturns in the past, make further
advancement against our competitors.

GRS
ERERE  RHEEBEF A0SR RBE LR

TS HFEE - AIMERREBHIE A
REME AR 2 BAIE R o BE T HEBL AL
R 2%%1!%3&??¥&X%$2 BERERRE

BBEHRITEMEHB 1% - KREBRERDN
BTSN R AR Y R ELRE 1)3%1#?4%%52%%1%%‘]5&
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

PROSPECTS (continued)

Demand for laminates at the start of 2008 experienced brief
softness due to seasonal effect of Chinese Lunar New Year.
The power shortage and logistic bottleneck caused by the
snowstorm in eastern and southern China provinces had caused
temporary disruption to certain production facilities located in the
north of Guangdong province for about one week. The affected
operations have since then resumed full production. In view of
fast growing PCB demand in emerging markets including China,
we will continue capacity expansion at our laminate plants in
Fogang, Guangdong province and Jiangyin, Jiangsu province to
bring total laminate monthly production capacity to 10.6 million
square meters, up 10% by the end of 2008. Our new glass yarn
plant in Qingyuan, Guangdong province was slightly behind
schedule as bad weather in the second half of 2007 had caused
delay in the construction work. Nevertheless, trial production
had commenced towards end January 2008 and monthly output
will reach 2,500 tonnes once the plant is fully ramp up. Glass
fabric and copper foil production capacity will also expand
in the new financial year in order to secure a stable supply of
critical upstream materials to support our expansion blueprint.
To capitalise on our broad customer base with diverse product
requirements, the Group is continuously developing high end
laminate products including thin and high performance laminates.

RIS ()
ERENFOEHUETE TR N\FYINERE

RFREE DR - NIERRERLRAOTIGER
TEAHRBERMYTHSEAMES - EBEERER
HiLMBOBEEERLEERN —E8  BXPE
MAEEREDIRELEFEF - ERHEmSBES
B ENRIARBEAR T SR RGN - SR R B SR R )
MIgRE IeBmEREBRTER  E-TT\F
JE - %%ﬂﬁ*&Zﬂ%@F““ﬂ%E—¥ A un- S ]
Ko BIREI0% - RE—TTLFTHFRAE
LR E ’ilﬁﬁiéxaiﬁ’\]%ﬁiﬁ%%lﬂ%ﬂiﬁl
TERERIERR - BEURE BB ARIER - BE kL
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TEEHEMRORERTE  HREERNERS
o RTEREERZNEFER - IEMMAH T
REMNEFR  SESEEREZBSHEREDR
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Our chairman, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, and the management team are fully committed to the future growth

of the Group.
ARREFEREAELERERE—EER

STHEB) R AR E R -
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APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
banks, the management and employees for their unreserved
support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wa
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 March 2008
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EENESREBABZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wa, aged 44, is an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both being executive
Directors and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive
Director. Mr. Cheung joined Kingboard Chemical Holdings
Limited (“KCHL”) in 1988 and has over 19 years’ experience
in the marketing of a wide range of industrial products. He is
responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group and
sets the general direction and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung
was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Keung, aged 55, is an executive Director
and the Managing Director of the Company. He is a brother
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both
being executive Directors, and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho,
an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1991 and
has over 16 years’ experience in the laminate industry. He is
responsible for the overall implementation of the strategic plans
and goals of the Group. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an
executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ping, aged 47, is an executive Director.
He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Keung, both being executive Directors, and an uncle of
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined
KCHL in 1988 and has over 19 years’ experience in marketing.
He is mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing operations
and is also the general manager of the paper laminate factories
in Fogang and Shaoguan, the PRC. Mr. Cheung is also an
executive director of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited
(“KBCF”), a 62.15%-owned subsidiary of the Company as at the
balance sheet date and whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung was
appointed as an executive Director in May 2006.

Mr. LAM Ka Po, aged 51, is an executive Director. Mr. Lam is a
co-founder of KCHL and has over 19 years’ experience in the
sale and distribution of laminates. Mr. Lam is also an executive
director of KBCF. He was appointed as an executive Director in
November 2006.

BITESE

SREIZESRAL - 4458 AAFRMITEETREIE ° %
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REBIGREE - 555% C ARAMITEFTRESTAL

c RELEBMITESTREFLENRETEE
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Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited([KBCF])
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE N SR EEAE 2 EF

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Ho, aged 24, is an executive Director. Mr.
Cheung is the nephew of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung
Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, all being executive
Directors. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 2004 and is involved in the
laminate marketing operations for the southern region of China.
He was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Ms. CHAN Sau Chi, aged 33, is an executive Director. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Statistics from Carleton University,
Canada. Prior to joining KCHL in 1999, she was an executive
in a financial public relations firm. Ms. Chan is responsible for
the Group’s purchase of laminate-related raw materials and is
the general manager of the epoxy resin plant in Panyu Nansha,
Guangdong province. She was appointed as an executive
Director in May 20086.

Mr. LIU Min, aged 39, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL
in 1998 and is the general manager of the copper foil factories in
Fogang and Lianzhou, the PRC. Mr. Liu graduated from Harbin
University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Chemical Engineering.
Prior to joining KCHL, he had over seven years’ experience in the
copper foil industry. He was appointed as an executive Director
in November 2006.

Mr. ZHOU Pei Feng, aged 39, is an executive Director. He joined
KCHL in 1999 and is the general manager of four glass epoxy
laminate facilities in Shenzhen, Fogang, Jiangmen and Jiangyin,
the PRC. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the Chongqging University and a Master’s
Degree in Material Processing Engineering from Jilin Industrial
University (now known as Jilin University). He was appointed as
an executive Director in November 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 34, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lo
is also a member of the audit committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
joined KCHL in May 1999 and is in charge of KCHL'’s company
secretarial work and financial management. Prior to joining
KCHL, he was an accountant at an international accounting firm.
Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-executive Director in July 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHAN Charnwut Bernard, aged 43, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chan is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company,
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is a Deputy to National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China, a non-
official member of the Executive Council and a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a graduate of
Pomona College in California, the United States. He holds the
positions of President and executive director of Asia Financial
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, and Asia Insurance Company Limited.
Mr. Chan also serves as the advisor of Bangkok Bank Public
Company Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, the chairman of the Hong
Kong-Thailand Business Council and the chairperson of The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Mr. Chan also serves as
director on the boards of several companies listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, namely City e-Solutions Limited
(non-executive), New Heritage Holdings Limited (non-executive),
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (independent non-executive),
China Resources Enterprise Limited (independent non-executive),
Yau Lee Holdings Limited (independent non-executive), and Wing
Lung Bank Limited (independent non-executive).

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 56, joined as an
independent non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr.
Chan is also the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company, and a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the
Chairman and an executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive
director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 2003 and Pacific
Textiles Holdings Limited in 2007, and a non-executive director
of Tao Heung Holdings Limited in 2007, all three companies
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
formerly was a professional city planner with various government
bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Arts and a Master’s degree in City Planning from
the University of Manitoba, Canada. Mr. Chan serves on the
executive committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association, and acts as the council member of the Employers’
Federation of Hong Kong, the elected member of the Quality
Tourism Services Association and serves as the board member
of the Hong Kong Tourism Board.
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Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 61, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Leung is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company, and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Leung graduated from the Hong Kong University in
1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting
and auditing matters, having worked in the auditing profession
for over 30 years, 20 years of which he served as a partner. Mr.
Leung retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005. Mr. Leung
was the President of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998 and
a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and is an independent non-
executive director of Eva Precision Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. MOK Yiu Keung, Peter, aged 56, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Mok is also a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Mok is the chairman
of Biu Chun Watch Hands & Parts Manufacturers Limited and
has over 30 years of experience in the manufacturing industry.
Mr. Mok pursued a Master’s degree at Yanshan University
in 2003. He served as the Vice Chairman of the Watch Parts
& Equipment Exhibition in 1997 and the Chairman in 1998
and 1999. He was the Vice President and later the Executive
Vice President of the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries from 1999 to 2001 and from 2001 to 2003,
respectively. Mr. Mok joined the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
in 1998 as the Regional president of the General Management
Section. Mr. Mok is currently the vice chairman of the China
Horologe Association, the Honorary vice President of Shenzhen
Watch & Clock Association and the President of the Hong Kong
Rangers Football Club.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHANG Guo Qiang, age 40, joined KCHL in 2002 and is
the general manager of the glass fabric factories in Shenzhen
and Lianzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chang graduated from Hunan
Chang Sha University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Textiles. Prior
to joining KCHL, he had over 13 years’ experience in the glass
fabric industry.

Mr. HU Guo Liang, age 51, joined KCHL in 2000 and is the
general manager of the glass yarn factory in Panyu Nansha,
the PRC. Mr. Hu graduated from the East China University of
Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s Degree in Material
Science Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 18
years’ experience in the glass yarn industry.

Mr. TSOI Kin Lung, aged 32, joined KCHL in November 2003.
Prior to that, he was an accountant at an international accounting
firm. Mr. Tsoi is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is in charge of the company secretarial work and
financial management of the Group.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 49.

An interim dividend of HK10 cents per share was paid to the
shareholders of the Company during the year. The directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents
per share to the shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on 5 May 2008, and the retention of the remaining
profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed
securities.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 52.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share
premium and special reserve of the Company are also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company wiill
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2007, the sum of the retained profits, the share
premium and the special reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$6,326,721,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2007, resulting in an increase in fair value of
approximately HK$317,000 which has been credited to the
consolidated income statement.

i O

FR - ARBZREZDFBHNE2AZES
RmBERN

BARRZREENIN - ART 2B s (E MR

RETATARRD K - R REEEFEETT DDk
BERZ®%&  ARRMENAENEEEREEBT
BB 2 R ©

R-ZEZ+F+-_A=+—H A2 az2REB%
)~ B E R R B 48 5E 40 56,326,721,000
HBIT ©

BEME
REBMZREMER-_TT+F+-_A=+—H=E
B - SRATEBINL317,0008 7T - BETA
FEWERN -

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME  BERE{E

Expenditure of approximately HK$1,364 million was incurred € A X Z R B S AEB EE H W3 B Y
during the year primarily to expand the production capacity of the  1,364,000,000% 75> 37 1 » 4E NFT A B 215 5
Group. Details of all the changes during the year are set out in A4 E B IEREFMTZE17 o

note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES FERBELAF

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 AXAFRTEWBATNR-_EE+E+-_A=+—AH
December 2007 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated 7 EEHN G B REMN TR0 o

financial statements.

DONATIONS EEA

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations &E @ - KEBEHE 2 EZE R AEMB R E D
totalling approximately HK$6,778,000. 6,778,000/ 7T °
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Ms. Chan Sau Chi

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Cheung Kwok Keung, Cheung Kwok Ping
and Lam Ka Po, being executive Directors, Mr. Lo Ka Leong,
being a non-executive Director and Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard,
being an independent non-executive Director, will retire from
directorship by rotation and will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 5 November 2006. Each service contract will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than one month’s
notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

The non-executive Director and each of the independent non-
executive Directors had been appointed for an initial term of
two years commencing in November 2006. In addition, the
appointment of each of the non-executive Director will continue
after initial term unless terminated by three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. The appointment
of the independent non-executive Directors will continue after
the initial term unless otherwise agreed between the parties. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies” on pages 12 to 16.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES BEEZROER

As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the Directors and their R-ZEZ+F+_—_F=+—H EERFEIHE
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the ~ ARARQ 7] K HABESEZE (F & B &5 REAE KA
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning ([ &H &EIE &M 1) EXVED) 2B ~ HHEERR DK
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), as &% H » A RNQ FRIEF S RS IEHIE352(5
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to & 7 &Mt o s - BB T ARES
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company  #E1TEAFRX SHRIZXESTRID MERNA [ MBI FT 2
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for #2540 -

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as

follows:

Long position A

@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company () AR EFREEO10E T2 ZiFER (AR
(“Shares”) %)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

Number of of the Company

issued Shares {EERATF
Name of Director Capacity held BETRA
EEpA HEmtE FEERITROEE ZBHRBEDL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,539,500 0.051
SREIZESE A EmEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 701,500 0.023
SRERSR e A BEmEAA
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 89,000 0.003
RRFEE BHEEAA
Ms. Chan Sau Chi Beneficial owner 60,000 0.002
BRFL/ME EmEAA
Mr. Lo Ka Leong Beneficial owner 50,000 0.002
BRAE BmEAA
Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter (Note) Beneficial owner 100,000 0.003
Reagsed (M) BEHEEAA

Note:  These Shares were held by his spouse. MiaF - ZERMDBHERERSE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) EEZRIER )

Long position (continued) RE(#E)

(b) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each of Kingboard (b AR EHEZHERESRBERE
Laminates Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the RG] AR ET(E 18T 2 SR ZRE AL R (7
Company

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held

Name of Director Capacity TSR ERERE
EEpA M BRGEE
(note 1)
(B1st1)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,058,000
SREIZE S EmlEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 529,000
RER S EREAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 952,200
SREITF A BmEAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 581,900
MREFLE EmlEA
(© Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of Kingboard Chemical  (c) AR A REER A AEEIE TEE ([ 25
Holdings Limited (“KCHL”), the ultimate holding company 1L TEE ) AR ENEO. 108 7T ZiER
of the Company

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

issued ordinary of KCHL

shares held HENEIEIEHR

Name of Director Capacity Fridc 21T EETRA

EEHE EHEME TERROEE ZHBHE DL

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,685,000 0.201
SREIZESE 4 BE=BA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 1,051,052 0.125
SREIR S EmlEAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 1,838,253 0.219
SREUE S A EREAA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 816,934 0.097
MRE L BE=BA

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 30,000 0.004
RRFTE EmlEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) EFZERAER 2
Long position (continued) RE(A)
(d)  Share options of KCHL @  EEEIEEZ ELBRE

Interest in underlying

shares of KCHL

pursuant to share options

Name of Director Capacity BEBREET

EEpA EHEME ERtISEHEERGER

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 2,840,800
SREIZESE A EmEAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 3,091,800
SRER S EmEAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 2,895,800
SREIF A BEmEAA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 3,091,800
MRExRE EmEAA

(e) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in Elec & Eltek (e
International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company

KR A EE N Al P i EE B R
BI([EEIC]).Z Z&/i% ([ EEICHR 17 /)

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
issued EEIC of EEIC
Shares held {HEEIC
Name of Director Capacity Frid B B 1TEEIC BERTRA
EEHE s KRG EE ZBHNBE DL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 278,400 0.16
SREIZE S BHEEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)
U] Share options of EEIC

Name of Director Capacity

EEHR REmEME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner
REESLE EmEAA
Notes:
1. None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates

Limited are held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no
rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of Kingboard Laminates Limited and have practically no
rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding
up.

2. The interests were by virtue of an aggregate of 811,000 share
options accepted by the Director on 24 June 2005. The number
of share options were subsequently adjusted pursuant to the 1
for 5 bonus issue by EEIC effected on 13 October 2005. The
relevant Director is entitled to subscribe for EEIC Shares at
an adjusted exercise price of US$2.033 per share. The share
options are exercisable in whole or in part at a staggered manner
within 5 option periods, commencing on 26 November 2006, 26
November 2007, 26 November 2008, 26 November 2009 and
26 March 2010 respectively and all ending on 24 May 2010.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors
nor their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31
December 2007.

EFZERAER 2

RE#E)

i EEICZ (B FER

Hiaz:

Interest in underlying
EEIC Shares pursuant
to share options
BERBRERT
MHEAEEICR 17 &
(Note 2)

(Hfatz)

973,200

AEERESEREEERER AR BER
BRI D  SZZIRIE Bt 3 42 I o5 P A B
EREERERAFEMBRASBERLRK
RARGENEG LERZER - 2B REEE
HIERERIGEF D IR 2 BT -

ZERSER —ZEERN_TTRFXA
Z B E#RA $£811,00017 18 5 BB T
B BRERESREHEEEEICR-_2TR
F+A+= AR AEERTZARETM
FE - AMEFVREHABTEBSRRD
2.033FETTRMBEEICHK - BABRIES FIE
—ETF+—A=+AB  ZETLF+—
A=Z+XA - ZZZNF+—A=+XB =
EEAE+—A-+RAR-ZE-TE=A
ZHABEZZ-THERA-THALFREE
SREREITE RN D BITHE2 K E 5

5o

B EMEEEN R_FEFLF+_A=1T—8H"
MEEERFES B 2BMBA LN ARRRIHEEM
HEEEE (EE R ER RAERPIEXVER) Z EMA
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24 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited

“ETLEEH ZERERERARAA



Kingboard

Kingboard

Directors’ Report EE &%

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share option was granted pursuant to the
scheme and no share option was outstanding as at 31 December
2007.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MERMZRH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS EFERR

At 31 December 2007, the register of substantial shareholders WRZZE+F+-A=+—H ' RERAQBIRES
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO KBS &HIE336EBEFE 2 X BARE Z LM
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect % » THIRRER( EXATIHEE TEE 2 EFSHBINE
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the & ZANAFHENANA T2 BITIRA 2 AR -
Company of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of

the Company.
Long position R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (“Shares”) AL F] 2R EEO. 108 .2 ZiBR ([R5 ])

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Company

Number of NN

Name of shareholder Nature of interest issued Shares held ERTRAZ
RERERE EatE 2 &TRGEA BRBEDE

Hallgain Management Limited (“Hallgain”) (@) Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.05
BEREEA
(b) Interest of controlled 2,243,050,500 74.77
corporations

e Rl S

KCHL Beneficial owner 6,468,500 0.22
EEIEE BERBEEA
(c) Interest of controlled 2,236,582,000 74.55
corporations

Rt EE RS

Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”) Beneficial owner 2,175,000,000 72.50
BEREEA
(@) Interest of a controlled 61,582,000 2.05
corporation

Rt EE RS
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long position (continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (continued)

Notes:

() At 31 December 2007, (i) no shareholders of Hallgain was entitled to
exercise, or control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more
of the voting power at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its
directors are not accustomed to act in accordance with any shareholder’s
direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wa, Cheung Kwok Ping and Lam
Ka Po, all of whom are Directors, are also directors of Hallgain;

(b) The interests are held by KCHL directly and indirectly. KCHL is owned as
to approximately 31.01% of the entire issued capital of KCHL by Hallgain as
at 31 December 2007;

(c) The interests are held by Jamplan directly and indirectly. Jamplan is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of KCHL. Mr. Lam Ka Po, being a Director, is a
director of Jamplan;

(d) The interests are indirectly held by Jamplan through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Kingboard Investments Limited (“KIL”). Messrs. Cheung Kwok
Wa and Cheung Kwok Ping, being Directors, are also directors of KIL.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2007. The Company has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors adopted by the Company.

FERE 2

REE)

ARG R EEO. 10872 &ER ()
izt -

@ REZTTLHF+ZA=+—A8 ' ()ff#EHallgaini R A#
MHallgainfi R A g1 TE K B K MEEHIITE =5 —3k
LA b2 A% - Hallgain & B E £ 1 T8 ERIF AR
RIERITE  R(NEFREELE « RETEERKK
A AHalgainZ EE;

(b) BEECISEEERERESAZSER RITT+F
F+ZA=+—8 ' Halgan# AR Bt TEEEHE T
REA4931.01%;

© JamplanE# KB A %S o Jamplanf 2E(LT
SE2ERAMNBAR - EEMRE KL BJamplan
ZEE;

(d) JamplanB R E 2 EH AN B AR RERERRARA
(MEERE ) MERa%SEs - EFREELERE
BFaEMAEBREZES -

B LR EESN  AAREEMGEN —ETLF
T A=+—BZARBRHTRAZEMEMA
BEmRER -

JL#EII:I

EERE  ARRARBE_ZTLF+_A=1—
AItFE2F—FE8F EmRAIM SR 14E 20
EERBHRTANRT o RAFRERMBERTIERR
LR A S0 E AR B R ([1R2EFR| ) 2B
AEFETHERXH 2B - KMEBESE
HRTEERE  2RESER  BE—AETEE
SFRIFTE R ERER AN A BIFTIRNE B E BT
HRX 52 BRFFA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s largest customer was KCHL and
its subsidiaries other than the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“KCHL Group”), and the percentage of sales attributable to the
KCHL Group was 20%. The percentage of sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers combined was less than 30%
of the Group’s total revenue. During the year, the percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers combined were 17% and 44% respectively.

At 31 December 2007, KCHL, a shareholder holding more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had a beneficial interest in
one of the Group’s five largest customers. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or supplies noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group had the following connected transactions with its
connected persons during the year:

(@ The Group purchased chemicals and drill bits from
the KCHL Group amounting to approximately
HK$154,164,000 and HK$10,945,000, respectively.

(b) The Group sold laminates and related upstream
component materials to the KCHL Group amounting to
approximately HK$1,061,302,000 and HK$812,804,000
respectively.

ARREEERBIFNTESRE LTRAE
BABMKMEL BB 50 2 FEMR - AAFR
7 BETRAESASMET S - 2BIIFNTE
EHRBIAL -

TEERRMER

FRN - AEEGREP REBCTEERENE
AR (TBEAARREMBAR) ([BBLEIE
E]) @B ISEMEZEHER20% - A%E
AABFAMEEHEEZ AP PN A EEBEXEE
230% ° FN - REBESEAHER LA ARERS
ZEEBEAILLDRRIT%R44% ©

RIBBLF+RA=+—H —EBHEFRFR
KERA 2 RREBCIEBNARERLREP
Z—HAERES o [ EXEREEIN  BEF W
ECBMEASBEEMAEEARRRAL% N L
ZEAIBRREER bl EE P A

o

B

REX 5
FR - AEBEAMEADETATHERS:

(@) AEERRECISEEBESCTERME
B - P ReRED B4 A&154,164,00078 7T &
10,945,000 7T °

(o) ANEEMBEELCTE B EER®@IR
FEBLERERES  PReBEIRNNE
1,061,302,0007% 7T % 812,804,000 7T °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In addition, the Group also provided drilling services to the KCHL
Group amounting to approximately HK$208,276,000 during the
year.

KCHL is the Company’s ultimate holding company. As such,
the KCHL Group is deemed to be connected persons of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for a waiver
of the above connected transactions from strict compliance with
the requirement under Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules and
the Stock Exchange had granted such waiver to the Company
from compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements in relation to these
transactions.

The Directors have engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The auditor
of the Company has reported its factual findings on these
procedures to the board of Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors, for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the
Listing Rules, have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
entered by the Group in the ordinary course of its business, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The purchase of chemicals and drill bits from the KCHL Group
during the year did not exceed the aggregate annual cap for
the financial year ended 31 December 2007 approved by the
shareholders of the Company of HK$200,000,000, while the
sale of laminates and related upstream component materials and
provision of drilling services to the KCHL Group during the year
did not exceed the aggregate annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 December 2007 of HK$2,740,000,000.

RRERX 5 (4
BEoN - AEE @iﬂﬂﬁ@/aftlﬁ (] 2 {1 3 FL AR
7% BN & EEA 5208,276,00078 7T °

,mm

R TEBERARR ZREER AT - Fit - R
B ETRAFI4AT  BECTRERRASARAF
ZRBEAL -

[A)HSE 52 P B 5 A R R AR 18
IR TN ZMRE - MR PT
FERSWN IS EAAVAL &8 13

AARIE L EER S
ST LA RIE 14A.42(3)1

ERRARRRRZERS
ZHE °

EFEEARARZEMEANEE 2 IFERERS
BITETEBERR - AR ZZBMISEmES
EREMERFABIERLER - HLTRAUE
14A3716ME - BUFHTEFEEMHERE
R 5 RIZHAD 2 Wt - WHER LB ERER ST
HASER —MEBBREPIIL - AR —MEEK
ARERRZER G AL NGEEST - BRGE

ANTEE  WRERDRIRE 2 EEFE -

FAMBEECISEEREBLCIERRERY
BEEVTEBAEE _TST+tF+-_A=+—
BUEVBFECEARREIGEZBFELR
(200,000,000 7T) - MFEA - MEEC L& EE
EEMER & A B LR R LRSS 2 68
CRETEBAHE_STtF+-A=1+—"HItH
B FE 2 #84F 1E EFR(2,740,000,000/87T) °
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EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee based on the relevant Director’s
experience, responsibility and the time devoted to the business
of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. During the year
ended 31 December 2007, no share option was granted
pursuant to the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under company laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2007.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wa
CHAIRMAN

17 March 2008
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company. It is in the interest of the
stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to operate
in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-
regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and
a clear definition of accountability of directors and management.

During the year under review, the Board has complied with the
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). In addition to the Code,
which is mandatory in nature, the Board also observes certain
recommended best practices (“Recommended Best Practices”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has adopted
certain Recommended Best Practices which are suitable to
the Company’s current situation. The Board will continuously
enhance the corporate governance standard of the Company
by reference to the Recommended Best Practices whenever
suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions adopted by the
Company.

BB ERERER AR ([ ARR | REME QR
(G AKED)EFE((EFE )ABE LT RA]
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REEFE  EFE - HETEEHARXIMAR
AEEZ ETARRN( ETARR )M S14mEz B
FERERTR TR 263 - BRERbIIEE 2
STRISN - BEEEISE LRI S4AE 22
FREFR(EERERR]  XRMEESARF
BB ETREREER - EFEENAER
HEEBRAT2EZRERERR - KM AEREAAR
A2 EEEKFE -

AR RERAIERTRRRR L 4R BT 82107
REFE(EETUND 2 BREFETESIH L
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the management of the business and the
affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted internal
guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the
Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial
performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s
business and ensures implementation of appropriate
systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated
to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman
of the Board and distributed to the Board members
within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to directors well before
the meetings, informing them of the background and
giving explanation on matters to be brought before the
Board. All directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure the
directors make decisions objectively and in the interests
of the Company, the Company’s articles of association
provide that any director shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions in which he or his associates is/are materially
interested nor be counted in the quorum of the meeting.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings
are sent to all directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the board
meeting and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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During the year under review, the Board had held four REBEFERN  EFSRTTHREHE -
mestings and the directors’ attendance at Board meetings EERNEFEERNEFEERRR2H
and Board committees’ meetings were as follows: JEEERIAT

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

E2g EVNEZEE REZEE FMzEEE

= = = =

Number of Meeting SREE 4 3 1 2

Executive directors HirEE

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REIE(EfE) 4 - - -

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) 3RE1s4 (5 415E) 4 - - -

Cheung Kwok Ping REIF 4 - - -

Lam Ka Po HKE 4 - - -

Cheung Ka Ho RRR 4 - - -

Chan Sau Chi BRELE 4 - - -

Liu Min B8 4 - - -

Zhou Pei Feng g 4 - - -
Non-executive director HHTEE

Lo Ka Leong BXn 4 3 1 2

Independent non-executive directors BB TEE

Chan Charnwut Bernard REE 4 2 1 1
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael R 4 3 1 2
Leung Tai Chiu 2t 4 3 1 2
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter Rideg 4 2 1 1
The directors have observed the importance of directing EFEARE AT TEREEREE AR
and supervising the Company’s affair at a more regular BEHEEN - KHALRESR S
interval. After consulting all directors, Board meetings GYHHEIRFESGREFTERITE:
have been preliminarily scheduled to be held at quarterly REFRITDVRMREGHE
interval and no less than four times in the coming year.
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Division and responsibilities

The Board of the Company is headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of
the Company. The roles of the Chairman and Managing
Director are segregated and are not exercised by the
same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the
following:

o schedule meetings that enable the Board to
perform its duties and responsibilities and
to ensure all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner without
interfering the Company’s operations;

. prepare meeting agenda after consultation with
the Managing Director;

o exercise control over quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between
Management and the Board and to ensure
decisions made by the directors are made on a
fully informed basis; and

. assist in ensuring compliance with the Listing
Rules and the Company’s guidelines on corporate

AIRBE

AARESEHEFES  HBBHEHIR
RARIEFREE IREREFHELES
BB - BEIFBR—RBALEE-

TEBEBREETER

. ZHEBRUNEEFERERITHME - I
BREZSMEMNWMAEER ME
EFE MIAETEAQRZE
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. EHIEEEREEE 2 M MEETT
BRNEEE  BREEFVRABE
MTERRE + &

. BEREREETRARAATY
DEEHRED -

governance.
The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the EFREETZAERRRMARRAE
overall strategic planning and day-to-day management of HEBHE -
the Group.
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The Board currently comprises thirteen members, four
of whom are independent non-executive directors who
are expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of directors of the Company.
At least one of the independent non-executive directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications (or
accounting or related financial management expertise)
as required by the Listing Rules. The composition of the
Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwok Ping

Lam Ka Po

Cheung Ka Ho

Chan Sau Chi

Liu Min

Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive director
Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Charnwut Bernard

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Leung Tai Chiu

Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr.
Cheung Kwok Ping are brothers and are uncles of Mr.
Cheung Ka Ho.

Each of the non-executive directors (including the
independent non-executive directors) was appointed for
a specific term of two years but are subject to retirement
by rotation and are eligible for re-election. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

EEeRA T =2KEBAN  HFHER
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The Board comprises directors who collectively provide
core competencies, sales and marketing experience
and technical knowledge in laminates and its upstream
component materials, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting
skill, as well as in-house advice to comply with
international laws and regulations. The current Board size
of thirteen directors with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into
account the nature and scope of the operations of the
Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after
appointment. The appointment of directors are fixed for
a specified term, but at every annual general meeting
one-third of the directors, including the Chairman, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders. The directors appointed by the Board who
are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned
above shall be taken into account in calculating the total
number of directors for the time being but shall not be
taken into account in calculating the number of directors
who are to retire by rotation. All directors eligible for
re-election shall have their biographical details made
available to the shareholders to enable them to make an
informed decision on their re-election. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement
and shall include in such announcement, the reasons
given by the director for his resignation.

EEemZRERAN HARHKAHE
MEAR R E LR 20D - HER
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Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each director to
keep abreast of his responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every director is required
to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs
of the Board and the material matters of the Company
and to serve the Board with such degree of care and
due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Every newly appointed director shall receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment. All directors shall
be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a
proper understanding of the operations and the business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board has a procedure for directors, either individually
or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties, to take
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the directors
to make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance
coverage for directors’ and officers’ liability has been
arranged against possibility of legal action to be taken
against the directors and the management.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation
to furnish the Board with complete, adequate and
appropriate information in such form and such quality in a
timely manner so as to enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities
as directors of the Company. All the directors are given
separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.

All the directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company Secretary, whose role includes
ensuring that Board procedures are observed and
followed, and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is
responsible for drafting minutes and keeping minutes
records which can be accessed by any director for
inspection.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) which comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chan Charnwut Bernard (Chairman), Mr. Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Mok Yiu
Keung, Peter, to formulate policies and procedures for
determining the remuneration of directors and senior
management and other remuneration related matters.
The Remuneration Committee is set up with written
terms of reference which set out clearly its duties and
authorities delegated by the Board of directors, including
the following specific duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for
determining the remuneration of the Company’s
Board and senior management. The objective
of such policy should ensure that members of
the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, in a fair and
reasonable manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company;

. recommend specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances,
bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive payments,
and share options, if any, for each executive
director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is
designated to consider;

o recommend targets for any performance-linked
pay schemes operated by the Company, taking
into account remuneration and employment
conditions within the industry and in comparable
companies; and

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-
executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) taking into account factors
such as effort, time spent and responsibilities.
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When recommending the remuneration package for
each individual director, the Remuneration Committee
will consider his qualification and experience, specific
duties and responsibilities assigned to him by the Board
and the prevailing market packages available for similar
position. The emolument of the directors on a named
basis for the year under review is set out on pages 98 to
99 in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
Review and comparison in terms of directors’ emolument
package and net profits of the Group are made from
time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all
such factors, the Remuneration Committee would make
recommendation on the remuneration package for each
director after consultation with the Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee had convened two meetings to consider the
remuneration packages for all directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s account which gives a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company. The
Company deploys appropriate and sufficient resources to
prepare unaudited half-yearly account and audited yearly
account. Senior management is required to present and
explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial
performance and operations of the Company to the Audit
Committee and the Board and respond to the queries and
concerns raised by the Audit Committee and the Board
to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.
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Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the
key elements of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place,
including the documentation of key processes,
procedures and rules relating to the delegation of
authorities. These allow the monitoring of controls
and restrict the unauthorised use of the Group
assets;

. experienced and suitably qualified staff take
responsibility for important business functions.
Annual appraisal procedures have been
established to maintain standards of performance;

. monthly business and financial reports are
prepared, providing relevant, timely, reliable and
up-to-date financial and other information; budget
variances are investigated as appropriate; and

o an internal audit function, which reports directly
to the Audit Committee, is in place to determine
whether the above procedures are properly carried
out.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the above internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
managements and will conduct such review at least once
a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and
the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance
of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and
risk management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.
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In addition to the internal control system, the Board has
established an internal audit team that reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
independently audit various functions, operations and
systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the
priority list recommended by the Audit Committee. The
internal audit team will prepare an internal audit report
highlighting the deficiencies and weaknesses in existing
audit functions, operations and systems for discussion by
the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on these
findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated to them by the
Board of directors. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the followings:

o review with the external auditors, the audit plan;

o review with the external auditors, their evaluation
of the system of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit
procedures;
U review the balance sheet and income statement of

the Company and the consolidated balance sheet
and income statement of the Group and submit
them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditors;

. review with the internal and external auditors their
findings on their evaluation of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the purpose of
assisting the Board in developing policies that
would enhance the controls and operating
systems of the Company; and
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of the standard procedures. 5 o
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The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee
will review the independence of the Company’s auditor,
the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies
non-audit services to the Company, the Committee
will keep the nature and extent of such services under
review, seeking to balance between the maintenance of
objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor to the Group were as follows:
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Nature of services RisHE

Audit services ZERTE
Non-audit services IERZ ERTS

() Tax services @) %R
(i) Other services (i) H At AR 75

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the
non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor
and concluded that in their opinion such services did
not affect the independence of the auditor. The Board
has appointed an accountant to be responsible for the
accounting and financial matters of the Group and the
Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial
and relevant information which enable them to discharge
their audit committee function effectively and efficiently.
Besides internal assistance being available, the Audit
Committee may request for assistance and advice from
external auditors as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee
shall meet with external auditor without the presence
of executive directors to discuss the Group’s financial
reporting and any major and financial matters arising
during the year under review at least once a year.
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In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:-

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of
reference;

. to have full access to and co-operation by the
management;

. to have full discretion to invite any director or

executive officer to attend its meetings; and

o to have reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit
Committee are appropriately qualified to discharge their
responsibilities and at least one member has accounting
and related financial management expertise or experience.
The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director,
namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Charnwut Bernard, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr.
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter and Mr. Lo Ka Leong.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2007.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company'’s articles of association set out matters
which are specifically reserved to the Board for its
decision. Executive directors normally meet on an
informal basis every two weeks and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group
and to monitor and ensure the management carry out the
directions and strategies set by the Board of directors
correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are given to
the management as to the matters which should bring to
the attention and be determined by the Board on behalf
of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, each chaired by different
independent non-executive director, to assist the Board
in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
which are substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members
who are independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Charmnwut Bernard, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Mok Yiu
Keung, Peter. According to the written terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include:

o regularly review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board with regard to any adjustments that are
deemed necessary;
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o review whether or not an independent non-
executive director is independent for the purpose
of the Listing Rules on annual basis;

. be responsible for identifying and nominating for
the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and when they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution by each individual director to
the effectiveness of the Board; and

. be responsible for re-nomination having regard
to the director’s contribution and performance,
including, if applicable, as an independent director.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
had convened a meeting for the nomination of directors
for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. The Nomination Committee had
resolved that Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung, Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, Mr. Lam Ka Po, Mr. Lo Ka Leong and Mr.
Chan Charnwut Bernard, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All the above-named directors were nominated
by the nomination committee to stand for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend
the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. In annual general meeting, Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each committee
are required to attend and answer questions from
shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditors
are also required to be present to assist the directors in
addressing any relevant queries by shareholders. The
Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their
questions, comments and opinions in relation to the
Group to the Board.
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The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) provide good
opportunities for shareholders to air their views and ask
directors and management questions regarding the
Company. All shareholders of the Company receive the
annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM
and other corporate communications. The notices are
also published in newspapers. Separate resolutions are
required at general meetings on each distinct issue. A
shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies
to attend and vote in his stead.

Voting by poll

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Chairman shall demand a poll in the Company’s
general meetings whenever voting by poll is required
under the Listing Rules. The Company’s articles of
association has set out the procedures, requirements
and circumstances where voting by poll is required, and
in corporate communications to shareholders for matters
where shareholders’ voting are required, the procedures
for and shareholders’ right to demand a poll shall be
specified. Such procedure and shareholders’ right would
be reiterated and explained by the Chairman at the
commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KINGBOARD LAMINATES
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 49 to 137, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

mellaEk

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

“ETFER EEEERERARLR

2007 2006
—ETLF —EERF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B =T THET FAT
Revenue e 7 10,426,783 8,472,422
Cost of sales SHEK A (7,671,540) (6,058,390)
Gross profit EA 2,755,243 2,414,032
Other income E AU A 9 69,631 77,508
Distribution costs PaK =D (178,744) (155,890)
Administrative costs TR AN (423,159) (376,062)
Discount on acquisition of additional I BE — R /B 2 =) BB oh
interest in a subsidiary ST E - 1,498
Finance costs BhE R AN 10 (168,136) (73,064)
Share of result of an associate FEfL—MEHtE AR EE - (762)
Profit before taxation BB Bl a A 2,054,835 1,887,260
Income tax expense FTiSBiF 1 (129,226) (145,849)
Profit for the year AN [ 5 A 12 1,925,609 1,741,411
Attributable to: FEML{H%RE
Equity holders of the Company RATEREFFEA 1,813,269 1,638,134
Minority interests DB R 112,340 103,277
1,925,609 1,741,411
Dividends R E 14 300,000 2,277,051
Earnings per share BRAEF 15
Basic HR HK$0.604 HK$0.573
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 December 2007 R —FEEFE+F+-H=+—H

2007 2006
—ETLF —EERF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Investment properties B 16 40,537 40,220
Properties, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 17 5,152,176 4,065,323
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 18 193,187 171,961
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19 19,800 9,000
Non-current deposits IEREE]S 20 221,589 15,166
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 21 1,632 =
Goodwill EEES 22 238 -
5,629,159 4,301,670
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 23 1,510,586 1,339,463
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N E MR ER TR
prepayments SEENE O] 24 3,510,045 2,710,257
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 18 4,199 4,015
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWR XM B ATIEIE 26 391,767 173,181
Derivative financial instruments TTESRIT A 27 1,637 3,704
Taxation recoverable ENEYRE 12,074 266
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRS 25 1,471,742 1,713,324
6,902,050 5,944,210
Current liabilities mEIaE
Trade and other payables B NEMENER 28 892,259 729,872
Bills payable ENEE 28 600,967 550,424
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENREMBARIKIE 26 4,042 4,881
Derivative financial instruments TTESmITAE 27 1,184 195
Taxation payable FESTRTE 228,255 245174
Bank borrowings — amount due RITIEE ——F A
within one year 2 29 636,634 540,687
2,363,341 2,071,233
Net current assets mENEEFE 4,538,709 3,872,977
Total assets less current liabilities BEMABERTEAEGE 10,167,868 8,174,647
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Kingboard

L I

Consolidated Balance Sheet & EEA B R
At 31 December 2007 R=ZFEE+F+-H=+—H

2007 2006
- - 4 3 S ZETREF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
iz THT FAT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBEE 21 - 543
Bank borrowings — amount due RITIEE ——F1& 3
after one year P ) 29 2,573,462 2,535,000
2,573,462 2,535,543
7,594,406 5,639,104
Capital and reserves A& A Rt A
Share capital &R 30 300,000 300,000
Share premium and reserves R (8 K a1 31 6,439,745 4,638,168
Equity attributable to equity holders AREERFA A
of the Company FEfh R 6,739,745 4,938,168
Minority interests DY EE R 854,661 700,936
Total equity BRBEE 7,594,406 5,639,104
The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 137 were EFER T N\F=ATtHEHER
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on BT EI90B EF17E 2R A M KR
17 March 2008 and are signed on its behalf by: *= WHTIIESREKRES
CHEUNG Kwok Wa CHEUNG Kwok Keung
REIE REE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Ed =2
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Kingboard

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1—HIFFZE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FATRERTARN

Capital of
subsidiaries
comprising Investment
the Group revaluation Minority

Share #H%%E  Capital Share Translation  reserve  Special Other Statutory  Retained interests Total
capital ZMEAT  reserve premium  reserve #E  reserve reserve  reserve  profits Total 7 | equity
Bd RE RERR ROER EREE ERRE WURE RRRE SRR REEN &t RRHE RIEE
HKS'000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000
Tt  Thr  Thn AT TEr  TAn ’ 77 Thr T Tt  Thr  Thn

( (note )

Baanceat 1 Janvary 2006 R-FEAE-A-H

pi:i 3 - 111248 3787 - 76463 47906 - 26067 - 3181185 4447876 600345 5,048,221
Exchange differences on RSN FHER
translation of oreign RERMET
operations recognised directly 2B £
ineauity = = = - 5259 = = = = S B2 19144 164403
Proft for the year REERT - = = - = = - - - 1638134 1638134 108277 1741411
Total recognised income TEREANAEE
for the year - - - - 145259 - - - - 1638134 1783393 122421 1905814
Issue of share capital BRA 390 - - - - - - - - - 39 - 3%
Avising on Group reorganisation  £EEAMES 284610 (1112498)  (3757) = = - 757689 (26,067) = - (100,028) - (100,023)
Transfer tostatutory reserve. ~ BRZETHE - - - - - - - - 6,185 (6,185) - - -
Acquisttion of addtional interests WEEEEE Y
of the group entities BOMER - - - - - - - - - - - (bu) ()
Investment revaluation reserve.  ERT (i ERARR
release on transfer REEHRE
of avallable-for-sale investment - - - - - [47,906) - - - - (47,906) - [47,906)
Issue of new shares by means  MEE 3
of placing HrR 15,000 - - 1007104 - - - - - - 1112104 - 1,112,104
Dividend paid Btk = = = = - - = = - (2257,666) (2257,666)  (19,385) (2:277,051)
Capital contribution from SUREHETE
minority shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - 3,000 3,000
300,000 (1,112,498) (3,757) 1,097,104 - [47.906) 757,689  (26,067) 6,185 (2263851) (1,293,101)  (21,830) (1,314,931)
Balance at 31 December 2006 R-EZ/E+-F
o = 300,000 - - 1007104 221722 - 757,689 - 6,185 2555468 4938168 700,936 5,639,104
Exchange differences on RirEaNER
transiation of foreign operations  EEHERART
recognised directly inequity ~ ZEREE - - - - 288308 - - - - - 288308 41244 309552
Proft for the year REEHF - - - - - - - - - 1813269 1813269 112340 1925609
Total recognised income REERZWALE
for the year - = = - 288308 = - - - 1818260 2101577 153,584 2,255,161
Acquisition of subsiclaries WBHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - 19606 19,605
Dividend paid to minority TRFHERE
sharefolders B8 - - - - - - - - - - - (19464)  (19.464)
Interim dividend paid for the ~~ BAEE-FELE
year ended 31 December 2007 +=A=1—A1t
FErEks - - - - - - - - - (300000)  (300,000) - (300000)
- - - - - - - - - (300,000)  (300,000) 141 (299,859)
Balance at 31 December 2007 R=EE+E+ZR
=t-AzEH 300,000 = - 1,007,104 510,080 - 757,689 = 6,185 4068737 6730745 854661 7,594,406

Note: HiaE -

(@) Statutory fund, which is non-distributable, is appropriated from the profit (@) TR DR EEES DIRBHEARLNE (T RIEE
after taxation of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the People’s ) ([HE ) 2B RER RERIEAR D RN BRI
Republic of China (other than Hong Kong) (“PRC”) under the applicable MR R 2 BrEi B FIETR ©
laws and regulations in the PRC.
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Kingboard

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
:nv_\éiﬁﬁjﬁéi%

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #ZE —EE+E+_—H=+—HI-FZF

2007 2006
—ETtEF —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#T FHIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEK
Profit before taxation BB AT A 2,054,835 1,887,260
Adjustments for: FUATIER EL A% -
Depreciation of properties, plant and M BEIKEZ
equipment e 564,618 458,537
Release of prepaid lease payments A ERIER D 4,198 3,591
Interest expenses and other finance FERZ MEMm
charges REER 168,136 73,064
Impairment losses recognised on trade  Ft& 5 & H b FEUBR X
and other receivables RBIEEE 19,854 30,687
Loss on disposal and write off of HERMEEYE - BE
properties, plant and equipment Ns 2 B iR 896 10
Share of results of an associate Vi il /NI - 762
Gain on fair value changes of KEMENTEES
investment properties Z ek (317) (7,163)
Gain on fair value changes of foreign RABINE R KA TE
currency forward contract FE) W (86) (23)
Discount on acquisition of additional 1 B — RIS B 2 =) EE A
interest in a subsidiary WS ITE - (1,498)
Dividends from available-for-sale AHEERE RS
investments - (901)
Interest income FEWA (30,559) (23,068)

Operating cash flows before movement Kit&EE S E AT~

in working capital (RAIE SIS 2,781,575 2,421,258
Increase in inventories FEEM (167,102) (417,708)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 K& E b FEULBE X &

and prepayments TR FRIEIE N (687,047) (283,152)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due AEE N EPNGIE ]

from fellow subsidiaries (3% 40) B> (218,586) 339,140
Increase in trade and other payables Z 5 NREMFEBEZIE 69,304 32,843
Increase in bills payable FERTZEZIRIE AN 45,039 190,689
Proceeds from settlements of derivative #ET4 SR T A

financial instruments Z TS F0E 3,142 =
Decrease in amounts due to fellow ENIEES NG

subsidiaries RIER (839) (13,240)
Cash generated from operations REEEFRE 1,825,486 2,269,830
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BHEEBEBRER (48,644) (4,026)
Other taxes paid H B #FiIE (126,875) (28,145)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REEKABRSTEHE

ACTIVITIES 1,649,967 2,237,659
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Kingboard |

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 42 SR & RER
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

2007 2006
—EZTtEF —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Dividend received from BUATE N E
available-for-sale investments WERE - 901
Purchase of properties, plant and BEYE WER
equipment By (1,325,365) (729,732)
Increase in deposits paid for acquisition BEE ¥ - = N
of properties, plant and equipment NI (197,677) (15,166)
Prepaid lease payments made BER 2 BN HEERE (11,213) (12,019)
Interest received BUFE 30,559 23,068
Proceeds from disposal of properties,  HEWE - BE &
plant and equipment FriS 108 65,741 13,950
Proceeds from disposal of HEHEERE
available-for-sale investments FriS8 308 - 55,234
Advances to fellow subsidiaries BIGEI N =NGIk =
ZETR - (658,201)
Repayments from fellow subsidiaries BERARMBARZER - 5,084,064

Consideration paid for acquisition of IGRE A HER A RS
additional interest in available-for-sale  FHR(E

investments (10,800) -
Consideration paid for acquisition 1 B — 1 BT /28 2 B BB A

of additional interest in a subsidiary Rz RE - (3,947)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR E A A 33 (110,928) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXW(FTR) B

INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFE (1,559,683) 3,758,152
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Capital contribution from minority DEURER & I8

shareholders - 3,000
New bank borrowings raised HIRITEE 683,059 3,102,701
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (548,650) (1,405,344)
Repayment to ultimate holding BRI ARE W

company BN - (3,987,921)
Repayment to immediate holding BEEERAREW

company BN - (75,548)
Repayments to fellow subsidiaries BEEMBATEWZER - (1,401,185)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares BT E B B (300,000) (2,277,051)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders £ 15 2 &I B A% 2. (19,464) -
Interest and other finance charges paid B4 F 8 % Eih gt & & A (168,136) (66,781)
Issue of new shares upon incorporation  sEHAK S 18 31T AR - 390
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRMFTS5RIE - 1,159,500
Expenses incurred in connection with  ZF77R% 5 X

issue of shares - (47,396)
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Kingboard

Kingboard

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &2 SR E&RER
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

2007 2006
—E22tSF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEFEFTH
ACTIVITIES HEFEE (353,191) (4,995,635)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH B4 RELSZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ORA) & s (262,907) 1,000,176
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FENzBERREEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,713,324 685,020
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE E RSB WIE
RATE CHANGES 21,325 28,128
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBEERREEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, ERITEBRIRE
REPRESENTING BANK BALANCES
AND CASH 1,471,742 1,713,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —EE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 10 May 2006 and its shares were listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 December 2006.
Its immediate parent company is Jamplan (BVI) Ltd., a
limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and its ultimate holding company is Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Limited (“KCHL”), a company which is
an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

Through a group reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the companies
comprising the Group on 15 November 2006. Details
of the Group Reorganisation are more fully explained in
the paragraph headed “Corporate Reorganization” in
Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company dated 24
November 2006 (the “Prospectus”).

RAAFRZZEENFRATEEHRERS
AR ER R —RERRZBRA
A HRORZZEZRFE+TZAEHER
BABMERGMABERAR([ERA]) E
R ET - RARZEE & AT AJamplan
(BVI) Ltd. * ZARIA—FRRRBEZHS
M2 BRAR) - MAREZ &K
TRARAEEECIEE([EE LIS
E]) ZARR—XAASEHSEMAT
WEREZEBRAT - ERGORERZE
RET o ARBIEMPHEEREZE SN
B2 IR AN E R 2 [ R EIE R — 84

FE o

REBRRBRMREBRA LT - AEE
HETEA(TEREER D UEIEARR RE
MERR(ATHRBE AEE]) 288 - #
o ARRR_FBERF+—ATHABK
REAEBERBRARZERAR - £EHE
HzHFBREARRAE_ZETRF+—H
“tmATEzERER((HRERER]H
BN ARER ] —BREEFRREE -
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GENERAL AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation
is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2006 have been prepared
using the principles of merger accounting in accordance
with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” as if the group structure
under the Group Reorganisation had been in existence
throughout the year ended 31 December 2006 or since
their respective dates of incorporation, whichever is the
shorter period.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB”)
while the consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars, which the management of the
Company considered is more beneficial for the users of
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

—RERRGEVBBRERZER
)

SEEAR  AEERAATERER - F
o AEEHE—TTREFT _A=1—
HIEFEZFAMBRRTIIRE S5
FoM[ AR AREFI DR Z A EHE]
NeprarhZRAGE  BIETEEE
AR EBERBREE_TTREF+_HA
=t RALEEEXKEERERARAEALZHE
M BEI( AR E RE)B—BEFHE °

o

ARBHDEIEBARE(ARK) -
GAMBRRAUNBTES - ARREE
ERAKBHEANBERROEAEES
e«

AARABRAZERAT  AMBARZ
TEREEFHIFES9 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED ERAHMEREEICEEMES
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREA(FEEABMERERER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first NRAEE  AEBBRERANLNTZERS
time, the following new standard, amendment and BHetmAae([EEestmae ) BHR
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong —EE+F A —BRBPBRFEERN
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which AR (BFT RRE([HE AT SR RE
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 I
January 2007.
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures FEe1ER BRI FE
ERLACCHEN)
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures EARMISEBR SHTE : #HE
AERIZETHR
HK(FRIC) - INT 7 Applying the restatement approach E5 (FRRE 78 R 3R FERH SR
under HKAS 29 - Financial reporting LRRELZES)— F295R —BRE
in hyperinflationary economies HREETHR BRGER 2
HMEHmE 2
BIFHE
HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 B (BRI 75 R ¥ BB R AER
LHIRELZEG)— F25% 2 #i[E
ZIEER
HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives &8 (BB B R NEMETAZE
LHIRELZEG)— Frar(s
ZREEIR
HK(IFRIC) - INT 10 Interim financial reporting and E5 (BERR B RS R R A HREA TS s
impairment LRIRELZEE)— BB
ZEE10%
The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material effect BRINGZ S50 B 7 B R SR 22 BN 4 a0 AT AR 2
on how the results and financial position of the Group & 2V ARNEARI S B E @ 5T HAR 2 48 M B
for the current or prior accounting periods have been AR T AN EERZE - At - K&
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period Em/EG e T EAEETRAE -
adjustment has been required.
The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under ANEBEWHEM T EESERE15E (1B
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. HESPE b e S e A ok
Certain information presented in prior year under the Koo AR F EREE ST ERIE 3258
requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and MERERNTHERERE  MBES
the relevant comparative information based on the BEETERIE1H (BRI AR) RE BT ISR R
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has ERFE 7R ERNBALL R ER A ERNEE
been presented for the first time in the current year. HRE®W °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs'

HKFRS 8 Operating segments'

HK(FRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and treasury share

transactions?

HK(FRIC) - INT 12 Service concession arrangements?

HK(FRIC) - INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes*

HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding requirements
and their interaction3

HK(FRIC) - INT 14

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised standards or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

ERFRAREESITZERMEG S0

(A5 )/

WREA(FEBMBGRBEN )

AREEIWEITAER T IS EME R AL
W FNBBIERTH RSB RE

BRGRTEAIE 1R
(R&fE5T)

FRGRTERIE235%
(&1&7T)

HREPERRER
B8R

&5 (BB B 75 R =R
LRIREZEE)—
REE119

&5 (BB 75 R =R
LRIREZEE)—
REE129

&8 (BIFR 5 R ¥R
EARBLZEE)—
BEE135E

&5 (BB 75 R =R
LRIREZEE)—
REE1458

M mENES)

fEERA

BB A
EPL RS )4
RN

ARTE SR 2B

B BT AN

ARG ERE19
R — AR TE X
ERNER @ &IE&
BSERHER
HEGE &R

1 RZFTNF-A—ARERARZFREBREY -

2 RoETLF=A—HREERG 2 FERRER

@

REZZBTNF—A—RRERRIGZ FEHMREEXR

4 REBRNFLA - BHREFRIGFEMRE AR -

ARREZRHEAUIEH REETNE
AR B BEAEE 2 2E R BEARRIL &

EAVE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &% —EZE+#+—H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Merger accounting for common control
combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the combining entities in
which the common control combination occurs as if they
had been combined from the date when the combining
entities first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect
of goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
first came under the common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

3.

FEEHBER
RAMBRRNRBELXAELRE I
W XAAE 2 GRTBORFARE - 5 T¥%
REmTARRAFERE -

RAMBRRNREEGM RS EMADN
BFEMBERRERNGH - 15 - LREYH
BREABAES LMRURFERR
R BRI FERE

HEEHTEHZE6ER

RAMBRRFABERRZEH T2
EHERBZVBHKRIAR BOEZFA
FFEBERIEH TS B HRETE 6

*t‘x °

EHERBZFEENREHNIR/ZER
FREEETAN  UEAFBRKBLRF
RWEBARIARHAEE - AERKAR
Bz A FRFEP 2ERBRRHAREST
AR 2R AEREMSER - WIAES TS
FERERERR -

FEWRRRBREERFEIAHRRXEZ
EEGtEEE IR RS B HE (AR
REFEERE) (T AREN A 2A
HEAHERIFRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up
to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, incomes and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

TERHBE )

FEREEE
HAVBHRREBEARALALRRAE
HlzER(EMNBARBESSF T8
=t—RLEZHBEE - EXARREES
BRUMRERB MR MEERRAEELERD
2 SR REREGE o

RERARBHEEZMBRRZESE - B
ERKRERNENEEEHELRBHIE
(FERBRME)FIALGZE WERA

WERZ  BEsiBRRZMERERIE
AR - AERESTERREREEEM
RERRIMERABEEH 2 -

FIESRBARRIRZIRS « &f - AR
FAXERERARE R o

HEARZMB AR 2 EEFEL VB
REZDEANEERFZBRAEZOFZE
7 c RRFEEFEZVBEREZER
REAZEXEHAMZEREZ2BR
BA0AHARD B REEBR AR
g WARIDBRREBB DR
MERRZ AR 2 BRI EARE Y
BEHH  ELBRREAORNEEIR
BRENER RSN B AR EARI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & Z =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

On acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries,
goodwill was calculated as the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest and the
carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the additional interest acquired. If the
Group’s additional interest in the net assets of the
subsidiaries exceeds the consideration paid for the
additional interest, the excess is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & Z =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business
at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment (other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction) used in
the production of goods or supply of services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
(See note 17 for the depreciation rates per annum of the
items of properties, plant and equipment)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®:RE 2

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties, plant and equipment under construction,
representing property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production or for its own use purposes,
are carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Properties, plant and equipment under construction is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production, rental or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as a
prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-line
basis over the lease term. During the construction period,
the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 7 —EE+#F+ - H="+—HI FF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Impairment losses on assets (other than goodwill
(see the accounting policies in respect of
goodwill))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TE®HEE s

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire contract is treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as properties, plant
and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®:RE 2

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

SN (E)

MEFGEEMBREAME - AREEIE
BrEEMAEOREEEAEXBRES
AEBZE2EE(AET)  MKREF2ZW
ARFXEB HRBAFHEXRBE - iR
FFHIAERBRERNRE - BIRUER
T BRARSGBEZER - fIELERZE
BNA)ER R 2B A (B
) - BREREZRNZREIEBLE
HRER S WA R PR

RU B BINE TSRS B £ 2 R B A AT 38
NEERBEMELNAFERERLEE
REAEZBIRBZEERAR - WK
BRAZERKRE - IELENZBENGE
frf TR ©

BRI

HIKE BEILEEREREEERER
ZERERAOBFER ERRFEELZ
AR - EEERRAEREERENK
AHEHER  ZEEERAETIBERR
BER - FERED  EEERARGERK
B E 2 AP EEN ERSR & P BREREV IR
ARBENMEMIEER AR

PTA EMfE B AN EE A RRER G AR

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
TTLFFR BERERZERERLAA

69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & E —EZE+FE+—H=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed pension schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ A =+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the consolidated income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # £ — EE+F+ - H=+—HI FF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into (i) financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), (ii)
loans and receivables and (i) available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #E —EZE+F+_-H=+—HIFFZF

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and
bank balances and cash) are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. (See
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed
from equity and recognised in the consolidated income
statement. (See accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®:RE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ A =+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. (See
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty; or it becomes probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & Z =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables and other receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. When a trade receivable and other
receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the
consolidated income statement.

by B
FrE+ A=+~ HALFR

EEWHEE o)

SRITAEE)

MBEEERE ')

SLE THERIMMBEE(WE S M EMEK
BRROME - MEMSEBIELRENEE
SRERESE —HRERE - BERRKE
AHBRRENEEEREREAREBER
AR HernaPBeTFEEERZR
REE L7 - BRSO E QIR TR A
REPERRBARTOREMEE

]H

SLIRC B AT ENMBEEMNS © &
EEBRBRIEECRER  REFRE
THRENRARERTHER - WABEN
FREERGRIRSRENRE (AR
BEMNRBERNETR) BN ERTE

REBRAGENMBEENS - BEFRSRE
MEBAEENREERGBETRRBADR
EHNREAR) Eﬁﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁﬁaﬁf?ﬁ%@iﬁ
ENH)ENEEAE - ZFREBETS
RERHARR @ B -

HEMKEERBNRERBRSEERN
M EERREETFLINR - RS E
WERHRERSN - HAREES B BRERED
R - BERANRAEZSHERGAK
BRTHER - BB S EBURFIEAR ST
YWk - HBREERRAME  RNERE
¥ YCER B 5 BT I EH B0 OB AT A SR & e
% o

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited

TTH

FER BERERZERERAT

75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+#+—H=+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses were
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated income statement
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in the consolidated income statement
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
in respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+—-A=1+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®:RE 2

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL are financial
liabilities held for trading. A financial liability is classified as
held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in the consolidated income statement
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bills payable, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+—-A=1+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading and are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements LA
FtFEF—A=+—HIFFE

For the

year ended 31 December 2007 # % — &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of the
Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivables for goods sold and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts, returns and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that has a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
instruments

Note 27 describes the directors of the Company use
their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. For derivative
financial instruments, assumptions are made based on
quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z — EF+F+ - HA=1—HIFZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &mTHR
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. SBMIAEH
2007 2006
—ETLF —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT TFET
Financial assets MHEEE
FVTPL - Held for trading HIEEE AR AFEFA
b= 1,637 3,704
Loans and receivables ER R EWERR
— trade and other receivables — B 5 REMERBRR 3,197,056 2,504,017
— amounts due from o A EE NG
fellow subsidiaries TRIA 391,767 173,181
— bank balances and cash —iRITHE R IR S 1,471,742 1,713,324
5,060,565 4,390,522
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19,800 9,000
Financial liabilities MEAEE
FVTPL — Held for trading BEEBEERIRATFEA
828 1,184 195
Amortised cost B SHR AR
- trade and other payables — B NEMEMERR
(excluding accrued expenses) (TRIEFERER) 595,199 566,747
- bills payable —ENEE 600,967 550,424
— amounts due to — FERH R R B A a)
fellow subsidiaries WIE 4,042 4,881
— bank borrowings —RITEE 3,210,096 3,075,687
4,410,304 4,197,739
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &% —EZE+#+—H=+—HIFFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash, available-for-sale investments, amounts
due from (to) fellow subsidiaries, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and bills payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
14% of the Group’s sales are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entity making the sale, whilst
almost 51% of purchase are denominated in
currencies other than the group entity’s functional
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #E —EZE+F+_—H=—+—HILFZF

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet dates are disclosed
in respective notes. During the year, the Group
has entered into certain foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge against part of its exposure to
potential variability of foreign currency risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange exposure. The
management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will consider further
hedging foreign currency risk should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to fluctuation
against foreign currencies of United States
dollars and Japanese Yen. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB, the group entities’
functional currency, against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes trade and other receivables,
bank balances, amounts due from (to) fellow
subsidiaries, trade and other payables, bills
payable as well as bank borrowings. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit
before taxation where RMB strengthen 5% against
the relevant currency for net asset position and
vice versa. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit before taxation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & Z —F

6.

Kingboard

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

United States Dollars

SHEl

Japanese Yen

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating-rate bank borrowings (see
Note 29 for details of these borrowings). In relation
to these floating-rate borrowings, the Group aims
at keeping certain borrowings at fixed rates. In
order to achieve this result, the Group may enter
into interest rate swaps to hedge against part of
its exposure to potential variability of cash flows
arising from changes in floating rate (see Note
27 for details). The management continuously
monitors interest rate fluctuation and will consider
further hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related to the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.
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6. ®MIR#®

6b.

BEEREEEERBEE)
A ()
HEERR(E)
BRES T (E)
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k- -4 o3 3 —EETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
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IESI
AEEZBIRITEERIER SR
ENERR(ZE %E?—I B
29) - MRFZEBEME + &%

Iﬁﬁﬂ#%?%%ﬂ%%ﬁ%i e
REBULER - AEBEFT AR
Hﬂ;ﬂ?t LA;MJI/;L%&”@UF@FE
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LI B E i — SR
EEH -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure of
the short-term bank deposits to interest rate risk
is not significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing bank balances and bank borrowings at
the balance sheet date and assumed the amounts
outstanding at the balance sheet date were
outstanding for the whole year and held constant
throughout the financial year to floating rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing bank balances
and bank borrowings had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the profit before taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2007 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$8,692,000 (2006:
HK$6,812,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest
bearing bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings.

by By
FrE+ A=+~ HALFR

6. ®&MIA»=
6b. HHEREEEEREEE)
T E s ()
FIRER (&)

B EARRITARZIRITH S
KRE) - NEE 2 RITHEHARHA
TRENEAR - EFRA - AR
STRSRITAESRZ BB HMESE - &K
REEREBRITHERATAST 2 F &
R AEX

BBEDHT

EESHRENN - ARBEAEER
At RERTTAERR RIRTT KA R,
REEBREENTHER
EERDAGZE  YEVBREER
HRTE  BEMXRBLTE

B RN

WEr BRITEBRRIRITEER XA
/S RE0EREF - AT EEET
B HBEZZTEF+ZA=1+—
B L FERBRE AR R SR8
1n%98,692,000/8 7L(ZTZTRNEF ¢
6,812,000/ 7T) * T EBHEANE
E#EZ T BIRITAB KT BIRITE
B2 FERR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # % — &

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at 31 December 2007 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is
the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the board of directors has
delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk in relation to bank deposits and
bank balances is considered minimal as such
amounts are placed with banks with good credit
ratings.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk of trade and other receivables, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers other than group entities. However
the Group is exposed to the concentration on
geographic and industry segment of PRC and
laminate industry.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are
concentrated on a few counterparties. However,
the credit risk on amount due from fellow
subsidiaries is limited because of the strong
financial background of the fellow subsidiaries.

by By
FrE+ A=+~ HALFR

6.

ﬁﬁ!lﬁw Z)

6b. HMEERSTEEERBEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &% —EZE+#E+—H=+—HIFFZE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2007, the Group has available unutilised
bank borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$4,768,142,000 (2006: HK$3,945,936,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented.

6.

&MIR#)

6b.

PREREEERRBEE)

REBETER
AEBLSEERDESERE - BE
RekReEFEWMOKTE  BEE
FREEERARAERIKF » K
RASENEE  WHERERE
RBNTE - EREETRITER
RERIER - BRTE BN L -

REBEBRITEBERTDAS
MEERR - RZ_TZLF+=A
=+—8 AEEXRPANRITE
BHEE 4 54,768,142,000/8 0 (=
TN 1 3,945,936,000/87T) ©

TRAMREESRTAROMBEEE
MEIBIER - BOFPTAEM B REM
5 DRBEASEANMBEAEER
BEZRAMFEFBRRSITENUGIE
RIE - RIBBEMNERASRER

H-°

REREEFEENITETR - 25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMIR»)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMERAKREEREEERBE(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEE LA (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables nmBE e kA ERBREK

Weighted Carrying
average Over 3months  Over 1 year Total  amountat
effective butnotmore but not more undiscounted  31.12.2007
interestrate  Lessthan  thaniyear than5years cashflows WZ-EStE

miEFy  smonths ZEAME  —FNLE #H% +2A=+-A
ARiE ZRAm BFEE-% BTREIE REREAR  ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fén TR TR Fén FET

As at 31 December 2007 RIBBtE

+ZRA=+-H
Non-dlrivative financial liabilties ~ ##74A KB E
Trade and other payables ZAREMEMES - 564,719 30,480 - 595,199 595,199
Bills payable ENER - 561,807 39,160 - 600,967 600,967
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENFZHBARGE - 4,042 - - 4,042 4,042
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $F{TEE 75 5.38 418242 234755 3,028,156 3,681,153 3,210,006
1,548,810 304,395 3,028,156 4,881,361 4,410,304
Derivative net settlement T4 TA- B2
Foreign currency forward contracts EESNEA ) - 60 201 894 1,245 1,184
60 291 894 1,245 1,184
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMITR=)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMBERAKREEREBEERBEK(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HBELAR (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) RBES R EBR(E)
Weighted Carrying
average Over 3months  Over 1 year Total  amountat
effective butnotmore butnotmore undiscounted  31.12.2007
interestrate  Lessthan  thaniyear than5years cashflows WZ-EStE
it B 3months =AML  —FHL ¥R +=A=1+-H
ERfE @Ak EBFEE-F (FRELE REREEE  CEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T THT T T#T TR
As at 31 December 2006 RISERE
+ZR=t+-A
Non-derivative financial labilities /74517 & &
Trade and other payables BB RE eSS - 539,521 21,226 - 566,747 566,747
Bills payable AVE - 512,213 38,161 - 550,424 550,424
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  EfFIZHBATIZE - 4,831 - - 4,831 4,881
Bank borowings - variablerate  $Bf7EE -8 543 54T 474 - 3118792 3666266 3,075,687
1,604,149 65377 3118792 4788318 4,197,739
Derivative net settlement IHIR-553%
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ EERINEA#) - 34 167 - 201 195
34 167 - 201 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+-HA=1+—HI FZ

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c. Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
by the Group from the sale of goods to outside
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related
taxes, for the year.

GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

Geographical segments

The Group principally operates in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) with revenue and profits derived mainly
from its operations in the PRC. An analysis of segment
assets and capital additions by geographical area in
which the assets are located has not been presented as
the Group’s assets are substantially located in the PRC.

6.

emT R =
6c. A¥EE

RIBEEEXHEBER - IR
RenEnh  BETHEGMEEE
R aE(BRITAETR)NAF
B RRERESTERBRET
BEANERRMNEELER

EERA - NBHERANRENGES
FBBRRCMBEERBAGBZ
FRE(EEAEQAFERS -

BRE
ERBRARBENFABHINEFHESR
A T U R FE W & BEORAT 40~ AR B M ARRE 35
EBIA ©

WERRE S

HED EB
AEEETRETEARKMBE([HE])E
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

8. GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS 8 XEBRHMWIESE=)

SEGMENTS (continued)
Geographical segments (continued) WEDI(E)
The additional analysis of the Group’s revenue by REFENAN  AEEBREBEREMEMRER
geographical market, based on geographical location of TG I R E H 2 EEFENFEIN DT
customers, for each of the year is as follows: T
2007 2006
—ETLFE ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THT
PRC h 9,566,919 7,649,605
Other Asian countries HAb TR 675,821 585,531
Europe BOM 128,319 179,095
America =M 55,724 58,191
10,426,783 8,472,422
Business segments SR
No business segment analysis is shown as more than HRAEEBIO% 2 F EXE R REE
90% of the Group’s principal business activities is the BINER RAAREER - R EEBEH D
sales of laminates and related products. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hikr A
2007 2006
- - 4 3 S ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Other income comprises: HABIE
Dividends from available-for-sale At HHERE
investments 28 - 901
Rental income Mok 7,738 6,014
Gain on fair value changes of KEMENFEESE
investment properties Z Wz 317 7,163
Gain on fair value changes of foreign RESNES KN TE
currency forward contracts FE) 2 e 86 23
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFRF EWA 30,559 23,068
Management fee income from fellow xERRMEBAT
subsidiaries BB - 22,610
Net exchange gain b s F R 29,547 9,091
Others EAfth 1,384 8,638
69,631 77,508
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

10. FINANCE COSTS 10.

MERE

2007 2006
—SBLFE  —TTAE

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x TAT

Interest on bank borrowings wholly BRRAFRAEHEEREZ
repayable within five years IRITIEEFE 169,025 74,926
Interest expense to holding companies 8 A FIAI[E Z M B A &)
and fellow subsidiaries FEFX - 45,701
Other finance charges HitmEER 3,177 5,944
172,202 126,571
Fair value changes of interest rate swap Fl| =iz i A EEH) (1,054) (50,463)
171,148 76,108
Less: Interest capitalised B BAMERE (3,012) (3,044)
168,136 73,064

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying
a capitalisation rate of 5% for 2007 (2006: 5%) to
expenditures on qualifying assets.

FRZERNMAEERATIR —REERE
H o RIETLFEUREREERSIZE
BALEE%( —TTRNEF : 5%)5TH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

The amount comprises: MBI

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNER
Charge for the year REEHIAZ H
Overprovision in previous years BEFERERE

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HE R AR 2 BB

Charge for the year REEHIAZ H
(Over)underprovision in previous years B EE (GREERE)
BETE
Deferred taxation ERETIA
Credit for the year (Note 21) NEEEE (EE21)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

FRiGIRBASL

2007
—ETLF

HK$’000
F#x

2006
e

HK$’000
TAT

1,644 3,472

- (9,461)

1,644 (5,989)
134,315 159,781
(4,558) 4,216
129,757 163,997

(2,175) (12,159)
129,226 145,849

BENEHIIZEAR 2 G BRTE A L

17 5% HEFE -

HitpR)E R 2 RIATDIZ BB RAEER 2

ERBEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11. FEMBEAZ 2
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before REE ZHIBEBFADER 2 HEEWMT -
taxation as follows:
2007 2006
—BEBLF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR T
Profit before taxation B A7 BIR 2,054,835 1,887,260
Tax charge at the domestic income LA B HFTIS T R 33%:1 &
tax rate of 33% (Note a) ZHExh (MiFta) 678,096 622,796
Tax effect of share of result of an JEMh—FEIB & N RIEAE
associate LRI - 251
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FLELIEM = T el 06 E B
for tax purpose IS B 42,706 23,420
Tax effect of income not taxable MBIAT F BARBBA
for tax purpose WA Y (46,468) (58,967)
Overprovision in previous years BAEFEBERE (4,558) (5,245)
Tax effect of tax holiday (Note b) BRH RIS E (Mf:tb) (104,200) (163,289)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR FERFIEE 18
LR RE 10,241 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B SRR FERR
recognised THIBEE (3,655) 617)
Effect of different tax rates of REMRIEER, R
subsidiaries operating in LB AR Z A
other jurisdictions/areas MEZHE (108,944) (63,524)
Tax exempted profit (Note c) N B wr (Mizkc) (333,992) (208,976)
Tax expense for the year REE 7 HRERAXL 129,226 145,849

Notes: B EE

(@) The domestic income tax rate of 33% represents the PRC (@ B PTG T EK33% 8 AN B K H AT
Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s operations are &2 PEIREERATEH -
substantially based.

(o) Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain (o) BIE B AR AR - AR TS TR
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are exempted from PRC B AR B B R G (AR R R (] A
Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from the first profit- 2RISR ) AT E AR R AR E D
making year in which profits exceed any carried forward tax FrisHi - Hi& =FESH KB R50% °
losses followed by a 50% reduction in the income tax rate in the
following three years.

(© Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in areas () AARIATEREBAIIMEE 2 B THEBER
other than PRC and Hong Kong are exempted from profit tax. RIFTEE &£ 2 m FIE R R ARG -

96 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited

“ETEER EERERERARAA



Kingboard

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B & R MizTE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11. FERMAX 2

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of RZEZ+F=A+"H PEBEMRPE
the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income AREFBEEFSEIF(REARKAM
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of B EREFENFHFE]) - R=ZZTEZE+
the People’s Republic of China. On 6 December 2007, F+=—ANH ARBESREEGHHEE
the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation FEARD o IBHBLERBERIEN B2
Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and TNEFE—A—BE HRARNETHBEAF
Implementation Regulations will change the tax rates for ZHREERHERNF15% 2 33% N EN A
certain subsidiaries from current tax rates ranging from 25% e

15% to 33% to 25% starting from 1 January 2008.

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FTEERF
2007 2006
—ETLEF ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FErx FA&T
Profit for the year has been arrived AFEEmFE &R
at after charging (crediting): (5t A) LARIER -
Depreciation of properties, plant ME - BE Kk
and equipment RiEITE 564,618 458,537
Release of prepaid lease payments TE A E SR IE R R 4,198 3,591
568,816 462,128
Net exchange gain b W a F R
—included in cost of sales — P ASHER AR (37,642) (20,863)
—included in other income —FF AE AU A (29,547) (9,091)
(67,189) (29,954)
Auditor’s remuneration ZER RN & 3,000 3,000
Cost of inventories sold BEFEZKA 7,671,540 6,058,390
Impairment loss recognised on trade B 5 K& H b EUBR R
and other receivables R BIEEE
(see Note 24) (RHFzE24) 19,854 30,687
Loss on disposal and write off of HERMEME - BE&
properties, plant and equipment Bl Z B8 896 10
Total staff costs, including directors’ BT A%RE - B3
emoluments (see Note 13) EEMe (RME13) 332,200 248,194
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. ERXRER#M&

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=Me
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: B ENS ST
2007 2006
—EETLF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits He REMER 12,274 8,458
Contributions to retirement RNEFIFT SR
benefits scheme 478 332
Performance related incentive TERIRER A
payment 59,220 12,045
Total emoluments [ 71,972 20,835
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BENRENSEEZME0T -

directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2007
BE-SBLETAST-ALER

Cheung  Cheung  Cheung Chan Zhou Lo Chan Chan Leung Mok
Kwok Kwok Kwok €] Ka Sau Liu Pei Ka Chamwut Yue Kwong Tai YiuKeung

Wa Keung Ping Po Ho Chi Min Feng Leong  Bermard  Michael Chiu Peter Total
KEE KEE 2 REF  HRE BRR  WAR BH Ru& EXR 0 MER  MEX REE REM &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FET TR TEn TER 2 TEn 2 TET 2 TET 2 TET 2 TER TR TR TR TER @ TER

Fees He - - - - - - - - . . ) i . i
Other emoluments: ~ 2{s4 :
Sdaresandother 4Rl

benefits & 2,300 2,078 2078 1,781 673 703 584 482 875 180 180 180 180 12,274
Contributons to RINERLTE

refiement benefs 3%

scheme 9 8 89 6 30 30 2 19 29 - - - - 478
Perfomancereleted  T{ERBEEE
incentive payment 4] 13,850 13,000 13,620 13,000 2,025 2,225 700 600 - - - - - 59,220
Totalemoments ~ BEEE 16,249 15161 15787 14,857 2,028 2,058 1,307 1,101 904 180 180 180 180 71972
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13.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Fees

QOther emoluments:
Salaries and other
benefits
Contributions to
retirement benefts
scheme
Performance related
incentive payment

Total emoluments

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2006

(a)

13. EERERME )

BEE=ME(E)

Cheung  Cheung  Cheung Cheung Lo Chan Chan Leung Mok
Kwok Kwok Kwok Ka Liu Ka Chamwut Yue Kwong Tai YiuKeung
Wa  Keung Ping Ho Min Feng  Leong Bemard  Michael Chiu Peter Total
REE  RET FRx g e RER Wit SiEs &t
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér  TEr  TEn THn T Thn TEr  TEn THr  TEn
ik - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
At :
FeREs
il 1,620 1,3% 1,453 1,257 42 517 512 418 45 15 15 15 15 8,458
g
i3
7% 61 70 58 18 26 - - 24 - - - - 332
TR
Fi] 3,100 2,250 2810 2,250 150 205 600 600 - - - - - 1204
it 479 3,705 4,393 3,565 500 828 1,112 1,018 769 15 15 15 15 20,835
Note:  The performance related incentive payment is s : IHERBREREDNSEREFEE
determined with reference to the operating results, ZISEEE  AARBRLEBTIS
individual performance and comparable market BIRREE -
statistics during both years.
No directors waived any emoluments in the years HE_TTLFRZZFTAF+=
ended 31 December 2007 and 2006. A=+—RHItFE  BEEEWE
EBS -
Employees’ emoluments b) EEMS

For the years ended 31 December 2006 and
31 December 2007, all of the five highest paid
employees are directors.

During both years, no emoluments were received
or receivable by the directors or the Group’s five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

HE-SEAFT-A=+—AR
—EFRLF A=t AL#F

€ 2 RARRHEREHRE
$ ]

REEFER  EFRAKERE
REHe A THED KR EER
e - FRRSIRFMBREEK
BB 2 BB S E B
Bz wE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

14. DIVIDENDS 14. KR
2007 2006
=Tt —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FBT
Dividends paid: BEIRERRE

Interim dividend for 2007 of ZETEEFREHRE

HK10 cents per ordinary share &A% & @A% 107811l 300,000 -

Dividends paid by the Company S£E&EHRIHRAA 7] K&
and certain subsidiaries prior ETHEAR
to the Group Reorganisation to:  JREEAX B4

— KCHL and its subsidiaries - BB tISEREMBAR - 2,257,666
— Minority shareholders of ~MIB AR EAR
subsidiaries - 19,385
300,000 2,277,051
Dividend proposed: BERE
Proposed final dividend for 2007 3% — - FRHAK S
of HK20 cents (2006: Nil) BRI B0
per ordinary share (ZTTRF  RE) 600,000 =
The final dividend of HK20 cents per ordinary share has EEeRRRERBREGRED
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to the B&207 L - HEZBFAR R AIIRER A FE
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the [ERRBAFERSHE - FAIEE -

forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, dividends HEe—_TTZF+-_A=+—H1
of HK$2,277,051,000 was paid by the Company and FENRN - KEEFAF - ARRIREA
certain subsidiaries to KCHL and its subsidiaries and the T WS B A 7] IR 3 2,277,051,000%5
minority shareholders of subsidiaries prior to the Group TRELEBELISERERBA
Reorganisation. AIARMB AR DEAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. HEET
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable RABEREEABEERSERAEIIZT
to the equity holders of the Company is based on the Y|EEEtE

following data:

2007 2006
- - 4 3 S ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHT T
Earnings for the purpose of STEEANGREARN Z ZF
calculating basic earnings
per share 1,813,269 1,638,134

Number of shares

B fn 8 B
2007

’000
:F

Weighted average number of STEEARFRET

ordinary shares for the LB AR DNAE I ER
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 3,000,000 2,859,863
No diluted earnings per share has been presented as the AR B BB B E e 2
Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary TR RS EEERA
shares. Ao
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 01
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & B &R R MizT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REME

HK$’000
F¥oT
FAIR VALUE ~EE

At 1 January 2006 KT F—HA—H 33,057
Increase in fair value NF{EEZ 7,163

At 31 December 2006 and R-ZEERE+-_A=1+—HE
1 January 2007 —ET+F—H—H 40,220
Increase in fair value NEE N 317
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+F+-_A=+—H 40,537

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2006 had been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. B.I.
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. At 31 December 2007, the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties had been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by Messrs. Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
qualified valuers not connected with the Group. Messrs.
B.l. Appraisals Limited and Chung, Chan & Associates
are members of the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

AEEREVER_ZTRF+_A
=t —HZAFETHE A5 B3 5 s
2B A ERAEMREERFEERA
ANZBEETHREZEEER - BE_F
ELET A=t HIEAEEREME
ZAFEDNREAEENEBFEZBYA
AERGEMEEBTRZBETHEZREE
EH - RABBRFEERAFIRGETS
HEMPEER - TREEHZER/UY
ERXHEEZITHEEEE

FEBRRBESHEREELRBLL
MORBZAEMFERES - BFRRAY
ERNGE XN BERIEREYE -

102

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited

“ETEER ZERERERARAA




Kingboard

Kingboard

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. H¥EWXE =)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A EREYERAERE
comprises:
2007 20(0[6)
—ETLFE —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Property interests situated in BTN EERE 2
Hong Kong under: WEERERS
Medium-term lease AR ERFRAY 4,047 4,480
Property interests situated BT HIFLREB AN
outside Hong Kong under: HEZYERER
Medium-term lease AR HAFR 49 11,960 12,000
Long lease REIFEA 24,530 23,740
36,490 35,740
40,537 40,220
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 03
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRE
Properties,
Furniture, plant and
Buildings fixtures equipment
for  Leasehold Plant and and Motor under
ownuse improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  construction Total
il KB ERME
BRlT #oNRkE RERES ki BRERER &
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Thn TR TR
CosT HA
At 1 January 2006 RZZT 5-A-H 716,106 2922 4,265,991 77208 63419 331,815 5,484,461
Exchange adjustments B A% 20989 - 10,694 2921 1,137 8,079 43826
Addttions hE 25,454 1,160 276,181 28,340 8,934 472,114 812,843
Disposals and write off It Tl (b724) (6,803) (45,289) (726) (11,173) - (69,715)
Transfer from fellow subsidiaries BEERZNBAA 1 - - = = = 171
Transfer to fellow subsidiaries ERTRZNBAR - (2291)  (145901) (1,485) (2108)  (101,409)  (2r3,104)
Reclassifications ENNE 55,432 - 433,765 - - (489,197 -
At 31 December 2006 and RZBRETZA=1-H
1 January 2007 R=F5t5-A-R 812,428 1,988 4,795,441 106,264 60,209 222,062 5,998,392
Exchange adjustments Ef AR 49,593 - 327,105 7,187 3,561 46,745 434,791
Addtions hE 6,038 592 239,987 11,483 752 1,098,757 1,364,379
Disposals and wrie off HE R (7.013) ) (77,776) 7.342) (15,916 - (108,070)
Acquistion of subsidiaries YEEHB AR - - 44018 446 811 = 45975
Reclassfications EEipr] 977 - 338,893 19201 = (359,161 ) =
At 31 December 2007 RZEEtET-A=1t-H 862023 2,557 5,667,668 187,929 56,187 1,008,403 7,134,767
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At1 January 2006 RZF55-A-R 119,701 7,180 1,338,178 23,563 33,749 - 1,502,371
Exchange adjustments EH AR 4,444 - 108% 733 848 - 16,919
Provided for the year TEERE 31455 186 41213 7248 7512 = 458537
Elminated on disposals and it E R
write off (3559) (5,805) (35,105) (658) (10,628) - (65,755)
Transfer to felow subsidiaries ERTRZNEAR - (18) (7,050) (577) (1,158) - (9,003)
At 31 December 2006 and RZFF/ETZR=1T-R
1 January 2007 k=5Zt5-f-H 152,041 1,343 1,719,063 30,309 30323 - 1,933,069
Exchange adjustments EA% 833 = 13,647 2418 1937 = 126,337
Provided for the year TEERE 30207 339 507428 19,150 7404 - 564,618
Eliminated on disposals and HERHERIS
write off (7,013) (28) (27,088) (1,002) (6357) - (41483)
At 31 December 2007 RZEEtET-A=1t-H 183660 1,659 2,313,000 50875 33307 - 2,582,591
CARRYING VALUE e
At 31 December 2007 RZFZtE+-f=1-H 67833 898 3,354,578 87,064 22880 1,008,403 5,152,176
At 31 December 2006 REEENET-A=+-H 660367 645 3,076,388 75,955 29,886 222,062 4,065,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥% - BEREE =)

(continued)

All the Group’s buildings for own use are situated in the AREEREERAFHUNTE - Wi

PRC and held under medium-term leases. EAMEAEA -

The above items of properties, plant and equipment are Ltz - BERKBEEZATFEL

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates KB GREAETHRITE

per annum:

Buildings for own use Over the remaining BREsE 1R B NFEI R R TEAI R E
unexpired terms of the Hsh50F (AREE BE)
leases or fifty years,
whichever is the shorter

Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining R oLES IRIRTA AT BR AR ST A HY
unexpired terms of the #=(E FHYIAE+F
leases or five to ten years, (AEEEBLE)
whichever is the shorter

Plant and machinery 10 -20% B Rk 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10 - 33"/,% L8 10-331,%

equipment P&
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FFHEE®RIEA

All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid N B2 IEN TR E AN A EE UNE

for leasehold interest in land outside Hong Kong under iz R HEAFR TR R o

medium-term.

2007 2006
—EETLEF —FER
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx BT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEmESTT -
Current asset mENEE 4,199 4,015
Non-current asset ERBNVEE 193,187 171,961
197,386 175,976
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. "JHHERSE
2007 2006
- - 4 3 S ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Unlisted equity investments FE EMIEAEE 19,800 9,000
The above unlisted investments represent investments LI ETRIREERLABEREITEL
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entity. It is TMRAFSF 2IKE - HRAFEZEEM
measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet BREREKN  BUEARRIESRAREER
date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates SEAEHEATE - SO EMRERE[ELE
is so significant that the directors of the Company are HRRKARRESTH -
of the opinion that its fair values cannot be measured
reliably.
20. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 20. FiRENRTE
Non-current deposits represent deposits paid for the ERDETREREEYME - BERRED
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment, and the YN ZEI® c ZEF A AR 1218
deposits will not be realised within twelve months from RAATEEEIE o FL - ZERBEE AR
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts were BEE - 2SS e HEmAREEEAS
included in the non-current assets. The deposits can B ENRREAAKEERN TAREER -
only be refundable to the Group when the suppliers fail FHARE °
to deliver the assets to the Group within the timeframe as
agreed with the Group.
1 06 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

21. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES 21. EBERF(EE)AR
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities TRAEBKRARH R IAGRBZEHANBDERZ
recognised and movements thereon during the current TEEERB(BE)BABUARER 2 &
and prior reporting periods: ) :
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Others Total
mERBHE Rt &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET
At 1 January 2006 R-ZTE F—F—H 22,261 (9,559) 12,702
(Credit) charge for the year KEE (BE) T8 (22,261) 10,102 (12,159)

At 31 December 2006 and RZZBERE+-A=1+—H

1 January 2007 k=ET+F—-F—H - 543 543
Credit for the year AEEER - (2,175) (2,175)
At 31 December 2007 RZET+F+-A=1—H = (1,632) (1,632)
22. GOODWILL 22, W8
HK$’ 000
BT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZTLF—H—H =
Arising on acquisition of WEE—RKIBAREE (AHFE33)
a subsidiary (see Note 33) 238
At 31 December 2007 R-EE+F+-_HA=+—H 238
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 07

“ETFER EEEERERARLR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 7 —EE+#F+ - H="+—HI FF

22.

GOODWILL (continued)

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries disclosed as
follows:

As explained in note 8, the Group uses business
segments as its primary segment for reporting segment
information. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill has been allocated to the cash generating unit
(“CGU”) of PVB resins business unit. The carrying amount
of goodwill allocated to the CGU of PVB resins business
unit is approximately HK$238,000 (2006: Nil).

The recoverable amount of the PVB resins CGU has
been determined from value-in-use calculation. Goodwiill
is expected to generate cash flow for indefinite period.
To calculate this, cash flow projections are based on
five year periods financial budgets approved by senior
management. The key assumption for the value-in-use
calculations is the budgeted gross margin at a discount
rate of 10% and growth rate of 7%, which is determined
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Since the
recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its carrying
amount, the directors consider that the carrying value
of goodwill at the balance sheet date is not significantly
impaired.

22.

-} {69
75 R B 2 0 P e P 2 L

ARFEWELT

2

FANK ISP - REBIARE D EMER
RO EER 2 TEDE - BLRERIHE M
5 BEEOETEWRESTE(PYB])
HEEBIHReELEM([REESL
Bfr]) - DETPVBEEEB IR 2RE
EE T 2 B RE(E4) /5238,0008 7T
(ZZTRFKF) -

PVBHIfE R £ E L B 2 AT E S RIRE
REEAEEIEE - BHNEKERME
EHRERE - RAEERAEE RERE
TERIAKL R R ETEE Tt EZ I F IR
BEAEE - FREEMBEEIZEERR
REEENE2FREXREREDRR
10%87% » THRZEABERBR N EEE
UM RRCHEEE BRNREELE
fzAaREEESNEERE  REER
R REERZHEREELELREXN
HE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

23. INVENTORIES 23. #&8
2007 2006
—ETLF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Raw materials = 1,221,514 1,132,155
Work in progress past Ut 195,005 129,621
Finished goods BIRK an 94,067 77,687
1,510,586 1,339,463
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24. ESRHEMEBEIREZRRFEFNRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2007 2006
k- -4 o3 3 —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Trade receivables B S EWBER 2,460,430 2,147,557
Bills receivables FEUNEZE 603,108 322,087
Other receivables and prepayments HubpE U BR = R FE N 2B 446,507 240,613
3,510,045 2,710,257
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24.
PREPAYMENTS (continued)
The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days,

depending on the products sold, to its trade customers.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at
the balance sheet date:

0 - 90 days 0£90H
91 — 180 days 91%&180H
Over 180 days 1808 A E

All bills receivables are aged within 90 days at the balance
sheet date.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of Directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any
customers. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed every year. 80% (2006: 85%) of the trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit scoring attributable under the credit
grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$484,879,000 (2006: HK$324,257,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average age
of these receivables is 120 days (2006: 128 days).

50 5 B T fth B e R 5% e T B IR
()
AEBETESES 2 EEHSERA120
B BTFMHEERME - REHA - B
FEWERZ R AT :

2007 2006
BBt —TERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx TATT
1,740,770 1,681,537
699,835 463,176
19,825 2,844
2,460,430 2,147,557

PrERWRR Rk REHEBRE
FHHI90R Z A e

ERMEAHELA - ARERE
ERFEHEEHBERP ZE
A Z2F2ecEseBEBaERE
AEPEEFEERBREELE -
BEFZRBERFDBFERN - 80%
(ZZTRF : 85%) EAHRE
Z B HEW R EARERRAZ
ERFRHE 2 &=ERFND -

REBE S EVRRBERIENE
W BR 3% - 48 BRI {E 5 484,879,000
BIL(ZTZREF © 324,257,000
JL)  RERABE LA - A%
B30 3k 22 SRR (R R E S 1
e AEERZERBUERAE
AR o ZFRUERR 2 FI98R
B A1208 (ZZTZR4F : 128H) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

24,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24,

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired.

91 — 120 days 912120H
121 - 150 days 1212150H
151 - 180 days 1512180H
Over 180 days 180H A L

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
past due beyond 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables aged between 120 and
240 days are made based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts by reference to past default experience and
objective evidences of impairment determined by the
difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimate future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group monitors any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivables since the credit was granted and up
to the reporting date. The directors considered that the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk of
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

BSRAEMEWRERRAMRER
(#&)
BHERREZE S RRERZ KRN
™ :

2007 2006

ot 2 —TERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRxT TR
234,808 168,724
185,377 112,278
44,869 40,411
19,825 2,844
484,879 324,257

BEEEHEENAEI2408 A £ 27 KRR —
MR E - AREEHZEREERSE
HIEL B - BRIEN T 1202408 28 5
FEUBRR 2 B - I2EBERRERZ
fEEr eI el & 58 R AR E A L R B
FlEfrEAzrAREeRERAERCZEZE
TEMNERERREEMNRESTE

EETEZRURR 2 REEER - B&
PRRHEEEERHRAY  AREER
BIRBERERERZEMNES - EF
R AEBYESEETZES MEM
RURREERR  BRBZERZXS7T R
BEP O -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24. ¥ SR HEMEIRHREAFRIE

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (%)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREH BT
2007 2006
k- -4 o33 —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Balance at beginning of the year FEEH 131,996 101,309
Impairment losses recognised B D EURFER Z
on trade receivables B E 19,854 30,687
Amounts written off as uncollectible HsE AUk e 2 o8 (36,528) =
Balance at end of the year FRES 115,322 131,996
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are AREEHEBRENEREZE S ERE
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate R BEERF115,322,0008 L (Z 2R
balance of HK$115,322,000 (2006: HK$131,996,000) & : 131,996,000870) @ ZERBELEGE
which have either been placed under liquidation or in REAMBREIET 2 5KIE - NEBGRZ
severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any SEATEFAEAERD -
collateral over these balances.
Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments B 5 REMERERERMRIEMNRIERIE TS
are the following amounts denominated in a currency NEBEE 2 EEEUIINEETEZR

other than the functional currency of the group entities to o
which they relate:

2007 2006
—BBEE  CTIAAF
Amount Amount
&8 o]
0[0]0) 000
Fr T
United States Dollars e 100,571 81,423
Japanese Yen H 56,479 3,804
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25.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of one month or less. At 31 December 2007,
the bank deposits carry interest at the prevailing market
interest rates which range from 0.18% to 3.4% (2006:
0.72% to 3.80%) per annum.

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group had bank
balances and cash that were not freely convertible or
were subject to exchange controls in the PRC amounting
to approximately HK$650.0 million and HK$396.1 million,
respectively.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the group entities to which they

25.

HITERRB &
RITEBRERCEEAERBEZEER
REMHBE B —EASA T ZEHBRTE
Ko RZBEZELF+_A=+—H ' F17T
BFRBEBRITHHENENF0.18EE3.4E
(ZTZTRF 1 0.72[EEB.80EF )7 B °

R-BELFR_TERF+_A=+—
B ANEBEAT EBLRREZTEINE
ERMRBRZBTESRESHIROA
650,000,000 7T %:396,100,00078 7T

RITERRREBRTIIAKREERZY
REE R AINE R THE 2 5N

relate:
2007 2006
=
Amount Amount
&8 o]
’000 ‘000
Fr T
United States Dollars e 78,904 24,730
Japanese Yen H 8,602 1,825
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW 26. U (fl)RAFRMELFIRIE

SUBSIDIARIES
2007 2006
—ETLF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Amounts due from fellow MENEEIR NEWKE R
subsidiaries under current assets MR BRI
— trade nature —E51HE 391,767 173,181
The Group allows credit period normally up to 120 days NEBGRINELTFTHEREZWNB AT
for sales to its fellow subsidiaries. The amounts due are CIEEH-RSEEA1208 o %=
non-interest bearing, unsecured and aged within 90 days FEW I8 At B SRR 0 HBR S
at the balance sheet date. A E N0 R T A o
2007 2006
—EEtF ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THT FAT
Amounts due to fellow RGBT EMNRER
subsidiaries under current liabilities ) =YNCIE o]
— trade nature —Z54E 4,042 4,881
The Group’s non-interest bearing amounts due to fellow RNEE R BFEMR RWE A RIIE
subsidiaries have repayment terms of less than 30 days. ZEREDRG0R c ZERMNE
The amounts due are non-interest bearing, unsecured BRERERR  HERRYAEHE
and aged within 90 days at the balance sheet date. HAHIQ0H 2 A °
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. THE&MIR

2007 2006
ZETLEF
Asset Liabilities Assets Liabilities

#E R EE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TR TR TR TAT

CGommodity forward contract EHRERAL 368 - - -
Foreign currency forward contracts RHINES 1,269 1,184 218 195
Interest rate swaps pilpessech:ts - - 3,486 =
1,637 1,184 3,704 195
At 31 December 2007, the Group entered into commodity RZZETLF+_A=+—H A&EFT
forward contract. The major terms of the outstanding VREEMAH c RERRIBzENZ
contract are as follows: FEBRFAT :
Currency (@]1F:141114 Maturity Forward price
w# BE F|HAR EHR
us$ Copper 100 Metric Tonnes 31 January 2008 US$7,125/metric tonne
X7 100 A WA R —ET\F—H=+—H 7,125% 7T, AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. #f1T$€MTI & &

(continued)

At the balance sheet date, major terms of the outstanding REER - WARIHZ REINESLYZ £

foreign currency forward contracts are as follows: ZIRFNT ¢
At 31 December 2007 R-EStE+-A=+—H
Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rates
m{E FHA EHEVES
9 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.732
N R EEE1,000,000% T2 6 4 15A 1ETTH7.7328 T
12 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 Within 1 to 2 years US$1 to HK$7.695
T EH#EE1,000,000F T2 & K 122N 1XTTH.7.6958 7T
9 contracts to sell US$2,000,000 Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.732
Nn &5 L E2,000,000E T2 64 1F A 13T H,7.7328 T
12 contracts to sell US$2,000,000 Within 1 to 2 years US$1 to HK$7.695
+ =P EH HE2,000,000F T 2 & 4 1226 A 1ETTH,7.6958 T
At 31 December 2006 R-ZEZERE+-A=+—H
Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rate
EfE EEEl= EHANER
6 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 each Within 6 months US$1 to HK$7.728
N EHEEE1,000,000F T2 A K NMEAR 1ETTH,7.728% 7T
6 contracts to sell US$1,000,000 each Within 6 months US$1 to HK$7.728
N85 E1,000,000F T2 E K NEAR 1ETLH7.728% 7T
6 contracts to sell US$1,000,000 each Within 6 months US$1 to HK$7.750
N E D H%51,000,000F T2 E K ANMEAR 13ETL A, 7. 750/ 7T

1 1 6 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & Z =&

27.

Kingboard

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

At 31 December 2006, the major terms of the interest
rate swaps are as follows:

BRI
FLEF A=t —AULFE

27.

i

Outstanding Notional
contracts as at amount Maturity
RLUTHBHREBZEN e LG

HK$

#IT
31 December 2006 200,000,000 30 December 2007
—ZERFTA=+—H ZEEEE+-A=1H

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the ultimate
holding company entered into contracts of interest rate
swaps with notional amount of HK$3,650 million (which
receive floating rate and pay fixed rate) on behalf of the
Group with a corresponding back to back agreement with
the Group that the income or expenses arising on those
interest rate swap contracts will be borne by the Group.
The interest rate swaps entered into by the ultimate
holding company on behalf of the Group had been fully
settled at the date of the listing of the Company’s shares
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined
based on the valuation provided by licenced financial
institutions for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet
date.

TEEMIR )

EERETA=1T—8  FxEH
ZEBIF

/
T

Receive

floating
Pl B

Pay fixed
FrfTER

HIBOR
BARITRRFE

2.18%
218

BHE-_TE F+-A=1+—AHL
FE  RERERATR—ZEEER
3,650,000,000% 7T 2 FR B R AN &
B 5T 7 Al =2 HY (WEUE B R & AT
C WEAREE B RT AR FE A
# o IR SR EEEA AT
EEZBE BN EBFEE - &8
ERARRAEETT L 2 FiAFE
BEIB AR AR B X AT E AR
T EBEEEE -

E R

LT A TARGEE R A FER
8 HRNVERFESREERE

HEMMBETARBZMAEETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 28. ¥SERHMEMEZREMNEE
BILLS PAYABLE

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of B 5 M EMEMNBERBIE A8467,771,000
HK$467,771,000 (2006: HK$392,810,000). The following BT (ZTENE - 392,810,00008 ) K E
is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet SEMER - L TRESENERNGEE
date. A ZBRE DT
2007 2006
—ETLEF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
0 -90 days 0£90H 413,504 327,433
91 — 180 days 912180H 33,669 43,929
Over 180 days 180 A E 20,598 21,448
467,771 392,810
All bills payable are aged within 90 days at the balance AN RIZRRRY /EFT BREN0E 2
shest date. A o
Included in trade and other payables and bills payable are B 5 REMENERRENZEBETT
the following amounts denominated in a currency other NEEERBNEEBUIINEEHBEZR
than the functional currency of the group entities to which o
they relate:
2007 2006
- - 4 3 S ZETREF
Amount Amount
& Kok
’000 '000
T T
United States Dollars eIV 31,851 63,694
Japanese Yen H 255,902 1,460,097
1 1 8 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. fITESH
2007 2006
—EEtLF ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THET FAT
Unsecured: fEIR IR
Bank loans RITER 2,797,038 2,595,000
Trust receipt loans EEiEED 413,058 480,687
3,210,096 3,075,687
Carrying amount repayable: AR THIHEERZ
REE :
Within one year —FR 636,634 540,687
More than one year, —F LA HETBBARF
but not exceeding two years 584,614 130,769
More than two years MFELA_ BN BB =F
but not more than three years 584,614 528,077
More than three years =ZF L BTN BBIYF
but not more than four years 1,404,234 523,077
More than four years MFEL EERBBARF
but not more than five years - 1,358,077
2,573,462 2,535,000
Total SEr 3,210,096 3,075,687
Bank borrowings at 31 December 2007 are variable- RZZFZLF+ZA=+—8 " RITEE
rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from BEBZBE  FRNENFEBRITA
HIBOR+0.5% to HIBOR+1% (2006: HIBOR+0.575% to ¥R EMOSEERBRITAZEFSME
HIBOR+1%) per annum. PNE(ZZEEARF : ABRITEEHREM
0.575EEZBFABRITREFSIME) -
The range of effective interest rates (which are also REBRITEBEZERNEXGEEANFFLE
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank KIOEESAE(ZTERF : 4675EE
borrowings is 3.9% to 5.4% (2006: 4.675% to 5.5%) per 5.5[E )& o
annum.
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 1 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29. SRITEE 2
Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts RITEERFE TN ER BRI EE I
denominated in a currency other than the functional INEREEHE 2 AT -

currency of the group entities to which they relate:

United States Dollars e 29,562 52,952
Japanese Yen H 50,700 260,554
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B&&F
THE COMPANY b N
Issued and
Authorised fully paid
BE ERTRME
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Ri8A &8 K8 E &8
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
T THT T THET
Ordinary shares of BREEC.10BT
HK$0.10 each: ZERR
At 1 January 2006 RZ2E F—A—H - - = =
On incorporation A 20,000,000 2,000,000 3,900 390
Issued pursuant to the Group REEE SR T
Reorganisation - - 2,846,100 284,610
Placing of new shares FLEFkn - = 150,000 15,000
At 31 December 2006 and i
31 December 2007 +-A=+—"H
RZZTLHF

+ZA=+—-A 20,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 300,000

1 20 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z — EF+F+ - HA=1—HIFZ

30.

31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Company was incorporated on 10 May 2006 with
an authorised share capital of HK$390,000 divided
into 3,900,000 shares of HK$0.10 each. A number of
restructuring steps were then taken with the objective
to establish the Company as the holding company for
the laminate-related operations of the KCHL and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of the Company’s listing.
On the same date, Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate
holding company, KCHL, became the beneficial owner of
3,900,000 shares in the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, pursuant
to the shareholders’ resolutions of the Company on 13
November 2006, 2,846,100,000 shares of HK$0.10 each
were allotted and issued to Jamplan as a consideration
for the acquisition of the entire issued new share capital
of Excel First Investments Limited. The Company
subsequently issued a total of 150,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$7.73 per share.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the Group Reorganisation
and (i) the reduction in the registered capital of a wholly-
owned subsidiary established in the PRC.

Other reserve of the Group represents the deemed
contribution from KCHL upon the acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries and the amount included in other
reserve was transferred to special reserve at the time of
the Group Reorganisation.

30.

31.

BEE =)
RATRZEENFHA+BHEMAT
75 TE B 7R £390,0007 7T+ 5 43,900,000
REREBE010B T2’ - AR FIE R
BIMETZESALSE R AEE(L
TEERENBARETRERBBEES
ZERATR - AHE - RNRABRLERAF
BBt IEEZz2EHENEB A RJamplan
(BVI) Limited ([ Jamplan]) B &4 R &
3,900,000/% /%10 2 BE#=HEA A °

BE_ZTAE+-_A=t+—HILFE -
BEARBNRZZTEERF+—A+=A2
MERZE R + 2,846,100,000 J% & i E (&
0.10/8 7T 2 IR0 BR 8 2 51T TJamplan * 1E
BREELREGRABEIHEFHITHR
RZRE - g - RRARIREKR7.73%8 T
24174 $£150,000,0008% AR EIE0.1075 70
ZHPRAD

RS 473 i 1R Bk foki
AEEZBRIEERIRKEHEARZE
EFERETEEEMARAYEMETZ
ARABNEEMRE ZANEE  R(i)—
P A e B S0 2 2 A 28 1L 2
B -

REE 2 H b A EE T R EWEH
BABRIMER R 2 BIEEE  FIIAEAM
REAZERSRCNETEBEARSE
BERRIRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 7 — EE+#F+ - H=+—HI FF

32.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company and
the shareholders of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June
2007 respectively. The Scheme has taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten years. The
Board may, at its discretion, grant options to subscribe
for shares in the Company to eligible participants who
contribute to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Company and include (i) any employee or proposed
employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive Director), consultants or advisers of or to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest; (i)
any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any
customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any
person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The subscription price of the Company’s share in respect
of any option granted under the Scheme must be at
least the highest of () the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

32.

RSchnRx

AR EIRER N 2R e TR 2 BRR D IR
—EELFRATNABR=ZZFLERN
A+ HBAHESREBRER S ([ &%
gl ZAEN_FTLFLANBER
B EmZB AR  BEEM -

ZATBIEMMATE - EEEURBAA
BRSEATREATRBERARRARND ZE
EELE - GERSEALA/HARAR
BEIERRBVNBERZAL  BREOAR
A - BREMHBA RS EMAEERFER
AEEcBR(BREER ) 2ERER
FRERER (THEBIRE - AR E
AIITESE) - AABMER ¢ (i)EMIE
HITER(BEBIFNTES)  AQHF
EATM B A B SRR E B ¢ (i) EM
FAN S B EAIRC B A B S ERHIRE B8
REERIRE 2 HER : (VVAREHE
MR EBRZEMES « (WEARAE
Bl AR E B RIRHT - FAERHE
RS EZ ALTHER « R(v)AKE(E
AR B A RISEME R A B R 2 EMERR
RARE KA RIRE B RAAEITEMAE
HZFEAA -

EAIRIRZ T B8R 2 B BRI
ARRBN 2 RIERBELETRER A
TEREER  (ARERONELERER
HEB(LERERH) ZBRMTERE
RFTBWTHE « (AR ABRDRERESR
BRERL AP LALERR ZBIAE
BREXRMRETEFHE  Rii)ER
A ZEE °

122

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited

T

f BERERERARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %24 B FE R R M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 7 — EE+#F+ - H=+—HI FF

32.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The option may be accepted by a participant within
28 days from the date of the offer for the grant of the
option upon the payment of a consideration of HK$1.
An option may be exercised at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the Directors to each
grantee, and in the absence of such determination, from
the date upon which the offer for the grant of the option
is accepted but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. The Directors
may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period
for which an option must be held, any performance
targets that must be achieved and any other conditions
that must be fulfilled before the options can be exercised
upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company (excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company) must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the share capital of the Company then in issue unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company and KCHL
in general meetings.

No share option was granted pursuant to the Scheme
since its adoption.

32.

BB 2
SEATARNERZRLEEBREZR
FEE28RNA BB EVETTEAESL
BRE - BLtEREIREFTET BN
EABRAZHEABERTE - WEEEHA
FAHIRE - R BB AR L Z R R
Z BR% - WMERIER T NEMESRRE
R BMES THFEZA /L - HEAR
ZETEI ZIRPRILGEXFAR - EFA 2%
BER2EA LRI ER L ITEE L BRE
2GR TRELBRENLEREZR
EHIR - ERZATER KRB B R REM
HABTER MG -

RIBZET I R AR R EA E B S B g
AERLZBEELEBEREGILRE T8
IR IR LT 8l M AR A RHE T H A 18 SEfE AR
RERT B Z IR E R 2 B IR B ) AT
BRI FRITZARBARNDERE  AHTE
BBARR N EZAEE A S BITRD
BEZ210% °

RIBFZ A8 R AR R BT EL A 2 S B A
AEFARLMAERITEREFTREZE
FERBPEEITER T THRITZARBRN
2B RENGBBARRNE 2B ET
PRZR30% °

PMER+ZEABRRE2EATRE 2
BEBRE(BRETERRITEZEELERE
PR ) FETTIE T B 31T Ml FRITZ AR A
BipEs  TEEBARAERDHTR
R2Z1% @ BRIFEARRIREBEIEE
BRI BER A& #H A RIYE R ©

B BIAR - SEERIRZA IR
EEITREAAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. WiEMELT
(@) On 1 January 2007, the Group acquired 100% (@) RZZEZ+F—HA—B  AEEEK
equity interest in a company of which the principal B REETERERE Ly EERE
activity is manufacture and distribution of laminates RZARIZIHRE  REeREAS
for a cash consideration of HK$72,341,000. This 72,341,000 7T © WIS LARE B
acquisition has been accounted for using the @EETIERE o WIENE EELR
purchase method. No goodwill arise as a result of o
the acquisition.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition are as WEEFTB A 2 EEFENT !
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
HWUER S S BFRT
ZIEEERAFE
HK$ 000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BABEFHE :
Properties, plant and Y - BB KEE
equipment 8,122
Inventories FE 4,278
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMBERERR R
and prepayments TEfS5RIE 103,462
Bank balances and cash WITEBRERE 9,022
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEIRR (52,543)
Total consideration LRSS BRE
satisfied by cash 72,341
Net cash outflow arising on WEEAZRS R F5
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid ENRESRE 72,341
Bank balances and BARITAERKIR S
cash acquired (9,022)
63,319
The subsidiary contributed HK$6,526,000 to the ZHBARRKERBRRERES
Group’s profit for the period between the date of EHILEHARAEE N FR
acquisition and the balance sheet date. 6,526,000/ 7T °
1 24 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Kingboard

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

33.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

On 1 April 2007, the Group acquired 51% equity (o)
interest in a company of which the principal
activity is manufacture of specialty resins and
related products, for a cash consideration of
HK$20,643,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the

acquisition was HK$238,000.

The net assets acquired in the acquisition, and the

goodwill arising, are as follows:

33. KEBHEBATR 2)

R-ZZLFMNA—H  AEBER
B — M ZR SRS R s A8
BEMZ AR Z51%KE @ BaR
{8 420,643,000/ 7T It E U LA
BEEVIR - WIEWEEEA 2 BE
5238,000/87T °

WRFBAZEEFELT

Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value

WERAREHZ
REERLFE
HK$'000

THET

Net assets acquired: BABEFHE :
Properties, plant and YIEE - B MRS
equipment 37,153
Prepaid lease payments ERAERE 2,076
Inventories =& 140
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HE MR
and prepayments NMIERFE 1,212
Bank balances and cash IRITEBERS 363
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMEMRR (934)
40,010
Minority interests DEIR RS (19,605)
Goodwill =S 238
Total consideration satisfied by: LA TH AR 22 48R (E :
Cash HE 20,643
Net cash outflow arising on WEEEZ RS RIEFE -
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BENRENRE 20,643
Bank balances and BARTESR LIRS
cash acquired (363)
20,280
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 25
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. BT 2)
(b) (continued) (o) (#)
The subsidiary contributed HK$2,169,000 to the ZHBARRKERBRREES
Group’s profit for the period between the date of EHILEHBAAREEREFE
acquisition and the balance sheet date. 2,169,000/ 7T °
(© On 1 October 2007, the Group acquired 100% ) RZZZ+F+H—B  mEEEK
equity interest in a company of which the B REETENERE Ry HERE
principal activity is manufacture and distribution wRZAR2EBE ReERES
of laminates, for a cash consideration of 29,250,000/ 7T ° WM EEAEE
HK$29,250,000. This acquisition has been SEFIEE o | TBUREEN MEEE ARG o
accounted for using the purchase method. No
goodwill arise as a result of the acquisition.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition are as WEEFTB A Z EEFENT !
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value
HUBAREtAIZ
EEERATFE
HK$’'000
BT
Net assets acquired: BABEFHE :
Trade and other receivables B 5 hEMERERR
and prepayments MIER IR 27,921
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 1,921
Trade and other payables B 5 R EM IR (692)
Total consideration U&7 ERE
satisfied by cash 29,250
Net cash outflow arising on WHEEE A 2 IR I F R ¢
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid ERERE 29,250
Bank balances and BB AR TAE AR
cash acquired MR E (1,921)
27,329
1 26 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 B Z —EF+F+-H=1—HI FZ

33.

34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The subsidiary contributed a loss of HK$1,331,000 to
the Group’s profit for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2007, total group revenue for the period would have
been HK$10,429 million and profit for the year would
have been HK$1,925 million. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2007, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group has transferred to fellow subsidiaries certain
machinery and prepaid lease payments amounting to
approximately HK$264,020,000 and HK$5,662,000
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2006.

33.

34.

IESME AT (2)
ZHBAR A WEBHEEASE A M
BAREBH RS K1,331,00058 7T 2 B518 -

HBER —TTLF—A—HZTK BN
BB U A £10,429,000,00078 7T+ A&
F R F# 51,925,000,000/8 7T  EEE
BHEMRSBAASR  RURTEENR T
tHF—A—B%RK  AEEEREBZK
ARIEEELS - TR R REE 2 T8

Al e

FRFBRERH
HE_ZEEXNE+-_A=+—RHILtEE "
AEBEEHEETRRME R AE TH#ER
TESHEFRIAD B4 A264,020,0007%8 7T K&
5,662,000/ 7T °
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for

35. &ik

2007
—ETLF

HK$’000
F#x

EEME  BE M

2006
e

HK$’000
TAT

but not provided in the consolidated FREMERTA

financial statements for BRI E M

the acquisition of properties, WEAELBE

plant and equipment EENG 141,932 117,056
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. #EEHEH

2007 2006
—EETLEF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FErx T
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA ¢
Minimum lease payments charged to FARGE R
the consolidated income statements Wk 2 RIEHALD
during the year (NEN
— for premises — 1,246 508

BREBRONFRAEERETHAEYE
ENZHEE - IEENONRZEEERE
ERERETE -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties and all lease
payments are fixed and predetermined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36. #EEHEH =)
At the balance sheet date, the Group’s future lease REEH  AEBIRBETAIEE 2 EEHE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are HRBEINZHAONTAR TR
payable as follows: i -
2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THT FAT
Within one year —FR 646 777
After one year but not later than —FRBERAFR
five years 1,791 1,476
After five years HFE 16,631 14,067
19,068 16,320
The Group as lessor: REBERLEA :
2007 2006
—ETLEF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAT
Rental income credited to FNFFAZERERZ
the consolidated income el A (BN
statements during the year, A A157,00078 7T
net of outgoing amount (ZEERF
of approximately HK$157,000 120,000%7T) )
(2006: HK$120,000) 7,581 5,894
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/ZF

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36.
The Group’s investment properties are rented to
outside parties for periods up to seven years at fixed
predetermined amounts. At the balance sheet date,
the Group had contracted with tenants to receive the
following future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases:

wEHEN )
AEEZBANEHRATEE 2 EEH
SMFHAAL - HESRALF - RE
HA  AKEREAFITIAHN  RET
AT 2 RO TR BRI 2 R EA
BRI

2007 2006
=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within one year —FR 7,496 4,249
After one year but not later —EBERAER
than five years 15,967 7,645
After five years HF1% 2,098 =
25,561 11,894
1 30 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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37.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which was registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme which was
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group and are invested in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme are members of both the ORSO Scheme and
the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the
MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension schemes is to make the required
contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and
the state-sponsored pension schemes of approximately

B F R AR M AT

FLFEFA=1—HILFE

37.

RFRFIETE
AEE R 2 00— AR IR R KRG 81 16
I EE 2 T BB AT &) (T B R IRET 81 )
RRBERHIEREEGINR_"FZTTF
ToARLZZAaHEAEETE(RES
FtEl)) - ZER B CEERAREZEE
DRAKAE  WRERBBILEFEAEZESZ
T o WK BER B Z 10 2 i
RRFTEIZEE - RKABERIRE
KBEEFEIZKE  MAAR_TZTT
FrZASZBMAREEZ FE B BEA
2IREEFE o

TEMNERRZEERTERMTEEZE
ZEMEBRAKRBENFEIKE - ZFWE QR
ARFHEexHz X —B DR ARKE
2 UXNBBREN - AEBERARG S
BTz~ BRI NAHEHER -

ABRERAGE - RESF S RERED
RAAE R ET 8IS 4 2 3049 57,501,0008

HK$7,501,000 (2006: HK$6,531,000) had been charged TE(ZZETNE : 6,531,00087T) © O EL
to the consolidated income statement. ABUYERPHIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B &R T MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 —FEZE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZF

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. FEALEZS
The Group entered into the following significant REBFHEBBAEATEFANETZIEAR
transactions with related parties during the year: S0 :
2007 2006
—ETLEF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
i) Sales of goods to ) EIEEA)EEPNG
fellow subsidiaries HESMm 2,082,382 1,714,976
(i) Purchase of goods from (i) EIEEA)EEPNG
fellow subsidiaries HEES 165,109 103,514

(i) Management fee received from (i)  MFEZHEBAF

fellow subsidiaries WEEIR & - 22,610
(v)  Rental income received from vy RRRMERF

fellow subsidiaries IER A & A 528 160
) Interest paid to holding V) MR AR &

companies and fellow EELEING

subsidiaries SRFLE - 45,701
(vi) Proceeds on disposal of (vi) B2 ¥NE

available-for-sale HERHHE

investment to ultimate & 2 TS 5IA

holding company - 55,234

1 32 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EZE+F+ A =1+—HIFF/Z

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Other than disclosed above, during the year ended
31 December 2006, the Group transferred its interest
in certain subsidiaries and an associate with carrying
values of HK$73,469,000 and HK$19,085,000 to fellow
subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$73,469,000 and
HK$19,085,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group
transferred properties, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments with carrying value of HK$264,020,000
and HK$5,662,000 respectively to fellow subsidiaries at
consideration of HK$264,020,000 and HK$5,662,000
respectively .

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group
received approximately HK$51,525,000 from the ultimate
holding company in respect of interest rate swaps entered
into on behalf of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is as follows:

ySE kRl
BINEEF

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined with reference to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

38.

MEANLZ R =)

BREXHIEEEN BEZTTAF+=
A=+—BHUIFE  rEERRRMNER
AIEEENE THEA R R —EEE AR
2w - BREES B &73,469,0007% 7T &
19,085,000/ 7T * 1E 5 5l 773,469,000
57T 119,085,000/ T ©

BE_TZTAE+_A=t+—HIFE "
AEEEETREMBARZME - BE

B REERBENHEERES RO
264,020,000 7T & 5,662,000 7T+ R 1B
% Bl A& 264,020,000 7 7T K& 5,662,000
TE o

BE-_ZEXNE+-_R=+—HILEE "
AEBEREERARMARRAEBE L
ZHREHY - WELAI51,525,000/8 7T ©

FTEEEASHSE
FRNEFREMEFEEEABZHEW
™

2007 2006
S
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#n FHR
74,404 22,465

519 352

74,923 22,817

EENEMIBTHRARZHESE RE
ABTRRRMISBBRETE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HELFER

Chung (Taicang) Insulated
Material Co., Ltd.
B (KR) BEMHERAA

Excel First Investments Limited

EERERRAT

Fogang Kingboard Industry Ltd.
BREEEXARAR

Guangzhou Chung Shun
Century Fibre Glass Co., Ltd.
BMBEEEREERAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

i30T A
BRERESHE

PRC!
oEY

British Virgin
Islands*

RERLEHS
PRC!

)

PRC'
RE

m
t
I
e

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of
the ownership
interest held
registered capital

BETREE
k% /itMas

by the Group
FRERGE
RaLH
2007 2006
B2t -—TIRX

% %

1US$3,000,000 100 100
3,000,000%7T
US$1 100 100
1£7
RMB878,100,000 62.15 62.15
KH878,100,0007T
1US$44,595,000 100 100
44,595,000% 7T

FLREERBOTZHNE

R-BEAER-ETtE+-_A=+—
FEMBAB ZFHBWT

Principal activities

IRRE

Manufacture and distribution
of bleached kraft paper
BERDHEAAKES

Investment holding

RERR

Manufacture and distribution
of copper foil
ERDEIE

Manufacture and distribution
of glass yam
BERD HRRY

134
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. FHAFFXEMEBAFZHE 2
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid the ownership
registration share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTREE FEEAER
MELEEE BRERESHEY k% /ifas E&ELH FERE
2007 2006
= R
% %
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Bermuda? US$72,250,000 62.15 62.15  Investment holding
Limited BRE 72,250,000 RESR
Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated PRC! US$6,115,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Material Company Limited e 6,115,000% T of bleached kraft paper
BE (fR) BEMHERAF HERAHRANEM
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates PRC 1S$29,466,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited i 29,466,000% T of laminates
BE (M) BERERAR BE RS HERER
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper PRC! US$17,936,546 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Laminates Co. Ltd. FE 17,936,546% T of laminates
B (fR) BRARERAA SERDEERAER
Kingboard Electronic Raw PRC! US$20,402,393 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Material (Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd. FE! 20,402,393% T of laminates
BEETIH (IR) ARAA BERDHEAAR
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. HAFIXEMEBAFZHE 2
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid the ownership
registration share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities

3 A ERTRERE sRMFAEHE
HELFER BiEREEHE ks ERE #aLh IERE

2007 2006
“83t 774

- <

% %

Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) PRC! HK$189,491,052 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. el 189,491,0524 T of laminates

IR ERERERAH HERDHEAAR

Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical PRC! US$27,036,887 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. g 27,036,887% T of chemicals

2B (T#) (tIARAR RERAHICIEM

Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC! 15$32,010,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. FE 32,010,000 7 of laminates

RERER (BI) BRAF SERDHERAER

Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre PRC" 1S$13,700,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Glass Co. Limited el 13,700,000% T of glass fabric

REEN R RO AVGLEET L

Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Copper PRC US$27,000,000 62.15 62.15  Manufacture and distrioution
Foil Limited el 27,000,000% 7T of copper foi

BEEMEERAR BUER 7 HIE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital

3 A ERTRME

HELFER BiEREEHE k% gRRE

FRREERBLTZEWE 2

Proportion of
the ownership

interest held

by the Group Principal activities

sRMFAEHE

Kingboard Laminates (Macao Macau MOP100,000
Commercial Offshore) Limited i BF9#100,0007T

RERER (RFEEREERY)
BRAF

Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC" RMB250,000,000
Petrochemical Company Limited ! AR##250,000,0007

BE (BBEY) AlLARAR

Kunshan Yattao Chemical PRC US$12,500,000
Co., Ltd. el 12,500,000% T
RIWRECIBRAR
# These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.
1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of

Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

Rae TEEHR
2007 2006
—22t ES
%
100 100 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates
BIER A HRAER
100 100 Manufacture and distrioution
of chemicals
HERNETER
100 100 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates
BIER A HRAER
# HERRIRERBRAT  TEETEEE
B o
1 HEARAIINEBERE 2R ERBK
I °

ERAIRARFEERRIBHEASEEAN
BEZARARMBARR - RARERR AL EAM
MBRRZFEEENIUE

EMBARRFAERBRBTEMNESES -
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Financial Summary

MBEBE

RESULTS x5

Year ended 31 December
H#E+_A=1t—HLEFE

2003 2004 2005 2007
“TE=F —ZTMFE —ZTRF e —ETLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET BT THT
Revenue E 2072959 4,660,178 6,131,169 8472422 10,426,783
Profit before taxation B R AT 459,857 1,140,257 1,233,100 1,887,260 2,054,835
Income tax expense FriEfEs (42,392) (60,699) (91,030) (145,849) (129,226)
Profit for the year REFEF 417,465 1,079,558 1,142,070 1,741,411 1,925,609
Attributable to: FE(E %R -
Equity holders of the ADAER
Company BAA 388,364 1,036,737 1,078,235 1,638,134 1,813,269
Minority interests DEBR RS 29,101 42,821 63,835 103,277 112,340

417,465 1,079,558 1,142,070 1,741,411 1,925,609

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREE
At 31 December
®+=BR=+-H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
“ET-F —TTNF —TTRFE —TEFEF EBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET THT
Total assets BERE 6,889,840 11,096,383 13241970 10,245,880 12,531,209
Total liabilities ElE (3,969,974)  (7,035,600)  (8,193,749)  (4,606,776)  (4,936,803)
Net assets BE%E 2,919,866 4,060,783 5,048,221 5,639,104 7,594,406

Equity attrioutable to equity RARER

holders of the Company HEAEGERS 2,400,097 3500232 4447876 4,938,168 6,739,745
Minority interests LERR R 519,769 551,551 600,345 700,936 854,661
Total Equity BREE 2919866 4,060,783 5048221 5639104 7,594,406

The summary of results, assets and liabilities for the three BE_ZEERAF+_A=+—HI=EFE
years ended 31 December 2005 which were extracted TR EREEMAaERENEEa AR TR
from the Company’s prospectus dated 24 November —EEANE+—A-tmA TR ERES
2006, have been prepared on a combined basis as if the 12 RA SRR R A EE &
group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares i PN A TR AT B SR b B
were listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange had ) A S AR — B TEAE o

been in existence throughout those years.

1 38 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
“TEELFER BEBERERERAR



'wE{EiﬁﬁE#ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁBﬂﬁﬁl
M D KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

5/F, Block M, Valiant Industrial Centre, 2-12 Au Pui Wan St., Fotan, Shatin, Hong Kong.
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Tel E5F © (852) 26056493 Fax EHE : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail EE : enquiry@kblaminates.com  Web site #841t : http:/www.kblaminates.com
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